
Lori A. Shibh1e1tc 
Commissioner 

Lori A. Wca,·cr 
Deputy Commissioner 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857 
603-271-9200 1-800-8S2-3345 Ext. 9200 

Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: J-800-735-2964 mrn·.dhhs.nh.go,· 

June 10, 2021 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to 
enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed below for the 
provision of health care coordination reception and placement services that will ensure all newly 
arriving refugees to the State of New Hampshire complete the requirements of the US Domestic 
Medical Examination, by increasing the total price limitation by $360,000 from $1,005,012 to 
$1,365,012 and by extending the completion dates from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2024, effective 
upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds. 

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2015, item #12 
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 6, 2018, item #11 . 

Vendor Name Vendor Area Served Current Increase Revised 
Code Amount (Decrease) Amount 

Ascentria 
Community 222201-

Statewide $502,506 $180,000 $682,506 Services, Inc. B001 

Concord, NH 

International -
Institute of 

New England, 177551-
Statewide $502,506 $180,000 $682,506 

Inc. B001 

Boston, MA 

Total: $1,005,012 $360,000 $1,365,012 

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023 and 2024 upon the 
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority 
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years 
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families 
in providing opporllmities for citizens to achieve health and independence. 
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05-95-042-4220010-79220000 Health and Social Services, Department of Health and Social 
Services, HHS: Human Services, Minority Health, Refugee Services 

State Class/ Job Current Increased 
Revised Fiscal 

Account 
Class Title Number Budget 

(Decreased) 
Budget 

Year Amount 

2015 102-500731 Contracts for 42200010 $45,954 $0 $45,954 
Program 
Services 

2016 102-500731 Contracts for 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686 
Program 
Services 

2017 102-500731 Contracts for 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686 
Program 
Services 

2018 102-500731 Contracts for 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686 
Program 
Services 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for 42200025 $120,000 $0 $120,000 
Program 
Services 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for 42200025 $120,000 $0 -- $120,000 
Program 
Services 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for 42200025 $120,000 $0 $120,000 
Program 
Services 

Subtotal $1,005,012 $0 $1,005,012 

05-95-095-9500010-72090000 Health and Social Services, Health and Human Svcs Dept of, 
HHS: Commissioners Office, Office of Commissioner, Refugee Services 

State Class/ Job Current 
Increased 

Revised 
Fiscal Account 

Class Title 
Number Budget 

(Decreased) 
Budget 

Year Amount 

2022 102-500731 Contracts for 95070016 $0 $120,000 $120,000 
Program 
Services 

--
2023 102-500731 Contracts for 95070016 $0 $120,000 $120,000 

Program 
Services 

-
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2024 102-500731 Contracts for 
Program 
Services 

95070016 $0 $120,000 $120,000 

Subtotal $0 $360,000 $360,000 

Total $1,005,012 $360,000 $1,365,012 

EXPLANATION 

This request is Sole Source because the Department is extending contract beyond the 
completion date and there are no renewal options available. Additionally the Department was 
required to name the two (2) vendors who will provide reception and placement services when 
applying for federal funding to support New Hampshire's Refugee Resettlement Program, as 
approved by the Office of Refugee Resettlement. 

The purpose of this request is to ensure the refugees receiving resettlement and 
placement services continue to have the ability to successfully complete all components of the 
US Domestic Medical Examination within ninety (90) days of first arriving to the United States. If 
the initial US Domestic Medical Examination reveals the need for specialty care, dental services, 
or mental health services, the vendors must assist new arrivals with obtaining any needed 
referrals and follow-up care that is necessary. 

Pursuant to Section 412(cX6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act {INA), 8 
USC1522(c)(6), states are required to provide resettlement and placement services to all 
refugees entering the United States. The vendors both provide resettlement and placement 
services for the federal government directly. However, those services provided to refugees 
through their federal agreements do not include services related to completing the US Domestic 
Medical Examination. 

The population served are refugees as defined by the Immigration and Nationality Act, 
Section 101(a)(42). Approximately 1,100 individuals will be served from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 
2024. 

The Department will monitor contracted services through monthly narrative summary 
reports. 

Should Governor and Executive Council not support this request, refugees entering New 
Hampshire may not receive the required medical examinations, pursuant to Section 412 which 
could result in a violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 USC 1522(c)(6). 

Area served: Statewide. 

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.566 FAIN #2001NHRCMA 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not 
be requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lori A. Shibinette 

Commissioner 
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Fiscal Details 
Reception and Placement Services 

Amendment #2 
International Institute of Boston, Inc. (Vendor# 177551-B001) 

Class/Object Class Title Activity Current Increase/ 
Number Budaet (Decrease) 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $22,977 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $99,843 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $99,843 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $99,843 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $60,000 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $60,000 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 42200010 $60,000 $0 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 95070016 $0 $60,000 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 95070016 $0 $60,000 
Services 

102-500731 Contracts for Program 95070016 $0 $60,000 
Services 

Subtotal $502,506 $180,000 

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor# 222201-B001) 

Class/Object Class Title 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Proaram Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 
Program Services 

102-500731 Contracts for 

Fiscal Details 
Reception and Placement Services 
Page 1 of 2 

Activity 
Number 

42200010 

42200010 

42200010 

42200010 

42200010 

42200010 

42200010 

95070016 

95070016 

Current Increase/ 
Budget (Decrease) 
$22,977 $0 

$99,843 $0 

$99,843 $0 

$99,843 $0 

$60,000 $0 

$60,000 $0 

$60,000 $0 

$0 $60,000 

$0 $60,000 

Modified 
Budget 
$22,977 

$99,843 

$99,843 

$99,843 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$682,506 

Modified 
Budaet 
$22,977 

$99,843 

$99,843 

$99,843 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 

$60,000 
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Reception and Placement Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2015 (Item 12), as amended on June 6. 2018 (Item 11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$682,506.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

' 603-271-9631.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a fee for services basis only for actual services provided.
Services provided shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items specified in
Exhibit B-1 SFY 2015 through Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2 SPY 2024 Budget.

6. Add Exhibit B-9, Amendment #2 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-10, Amendment #2 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-01-A02 Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2021

Date

-OocuSigned by:

Ann H. N. Landry

Name^-^tfA''¥P.''^Pf:'^Landry
Title: Associate commissioner

5/26/2021

Date

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

—OocuSigned by:

Narne^^Wmnney
Title: chief of staff & External Relations

SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-01-A02

A-S-1.0

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

~Oo«oSlgned by:

6/2/2021 .

Diti NameS^^W^'^inos "
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2015-OH6-01-RECEP-01-A02 Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0BBB4A0-2790-4B32^0E-122AA5835DE6

Exhibit e-9 AmcndiTMnl R SFY 2022 Budgal

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPt.ETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nama: Aacantcla Community Sarvlcaa. Inc.

Bud gal Raquaat foe Racaptlon and Plaeamant Saivleaa

Budgat Parted; SFY 2022

LIna Ram

j^Projr Contractor Shaia i Match Fundad by DHHS eontrael ahara

IndiracI

1 - Total SalanWaoaa

2. EmptovaaBanafiW

3. Conndtantt

4. EqulpmaoL

Rental

Rapelf and Mainlenaoea

PurohaaafOapraeialion

5. Suppliae;

Pharmacy

7. Occupancr

8. Curretd Exoaneea

Teteohona

Poetaqe

Subacrteliona

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Exoanaea

9. Software

10. Marliatlnti/Communieationa

l2;_StaH_Edu»jonjnd^ra«rtn^
12, Sutieontraeta/AareamanU

13. Other (»t>acificdeia<» mandaietyl:

Indirect As A Percent of Olract

Aacarftria Commuiity Servlcos. Inc.
SS-2015-OHE-0t-RECEP-01-A02

Exhibit B-9 Amwidmerl R SFY 2022 Budget
Page 1 of l

Contractor Mdals

377B/2021
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ExMbtt B-tO AfTMndmcnl 12 SPT 202)

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Hisnan Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Namo: Aaconirii Community Sorvteos. Inc.

Budgot RotjuMt ton RoeopUon and Plaeamant Saivicas

Budgat Partod: SFY 202)

Fundad by DHH^ eonttaet ahara

LMa Ram

Total Proflfam Coat

IndiracI

Contractor Shara / Match

Ittdlract

1. Total SataryWaoaa

2. Emplovaa Bartafita

). Conaieants

_gg;dgn2arj^

Rapat and Matntananca

PurcnaaeOaoraOlon

5. SuppSaa:

6. Traval

t. Oocupancy
8. Ctarard Expanaaa

_TaJagJ»o^

S<*eofatione

AuMandLaqal

Board £wanaat

Sollwara

10. MariiotaiotComrTwaiicattooa

n. StafI Education and Tralnirw

12. Sut)Contracta/Ao«aa«nanta
1). OthattapaofiedataHmandnloryt:

ToSooloT T 60.000.00

Indlraet Aa A Pareant ol dract

Aaeanlita CommurOty Sarvlcaa. Inc.
SS-201«>HE-OI-«ECEP^J1-ACl2

ExNM B-tO Amandmarl *2 SPY 202) Budget

P^a lot 1

Jk
InKtsIs

5/26/2021
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Exhibit B-11 Am«n4n>*nl «2 SFY 2024 BudgM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Aacatttria Community Sarvicas. Inc.

Sudoat Ra<|ua»l fort Racaptlon and Placamant Sarvicas

Budeat Parlod: SFV 2024

iontraetor Shata I Match^^Tolal^^Prograni^CM^
Irtdlraet

^^Fundad^bjf^^HHS^contrac^^har^

Total SatarWWaoaa

2. Emplovaa Barwfita

3. Consiilants

Eouipmont:

Rapacand MainlenarKa

PurchaaaiCaprseialion
5; Soppliea:

Pharmacy

7. Occupancy

8. Curratti Eioanaaa

^Tatogtwn^
Poataoa

Sobacriptbna
Audit arw Laoal

Insurance

Board Exoansas

Soflwara

to. Markatinq/CommunicatiorB

11. Staff Education and Tralnaxi

12. Stbcontracts/AQraariiixda

13. Ottietl«t>acdie<teta<s mandatory):

Indlract As A Parcant of Direct

Ascsrtria Communily Sarvioss, Inc.
SS-201S-OHE-01-RECEP-etWUQ

Exhibit B-11 AmacxSmsnl *2 SFV 2024 Budgst
Page 1 of l 5/26/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Wiiiiam M. Gardner. Sccrclar>' ofSialc of the State ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13, 201 1. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of States office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this ofilce is concerned.

Business 10:652197

Certificate Number: 0005296319

Ba.

•9

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th davof March A.0. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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QuickStart

Filing History

Business Name

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Business ID

652197

Back to Home (/online)

Filing# Filing Date Effective Date Filing Type Annual Report Year

0005032160 10/22/2020 10/22/2020 Nonprofit Report 2020

0004766972 01/16/2020 01/16/2020 Annual Report Reminder N/A

0003053719 02/27/2015 02/27/2015 Annual Report 2015

0002849481 09/15/2014 09/15/2014 Amendment N/A

0002849480 09/23/2013 09/23/2013 Agent Change/Resign N/A

0002849479 07/08/2011 07/08/2011 Amendment N/A

0002849478 06/29/2011 06/29/2011 Survivor, N/A

0002849477 06/13/2011 06/13/2011 Business Formation N/A

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 8 of 8

Back

NH Departn^ent of State, 107 North Main St, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 - Contact Us (/online/Home/ContactUS^

Version 2,t © 2014 PCC Technology Group, IIC, All Rights Reserved

https://quickstart.sos.nh,gov/online/Businesslnquire/FilingHistOfy?businesslD=474545 1/1
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Tara E. Browne ; . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
September 8 , 20 20 . at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Angela Bovitl. President: Jeanette Wade. Executive Vice President: Jeffrey Kinnev. Executive Vice

President: and Michelle Bettiaole. Executive Vice President (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

are duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and
all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,
which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: Mav 4. 2021
Stgrtature of Elected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne

Title: Corporate Clerk

Rev. 03/24/20
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/KCO^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DCVYYYY)

9/30/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endor8omont(s).

PRODUCER

Hays Companies Inc.

133 Federal Street, 4t:h Floor

Boston MX 02110

NAMF*^' Tina Housman
PHONE FAX
fA/C No. E*tV (A/C.Nol:

Ai^Fsq- t:housman6hayscompanies .com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

iNSURERA: Philadelphia Insuremce Compemies 92535

INSURED

Ascentria Care Alliance

14 East Worcester Street

Suite 300

Worcester MA 01604

INSURERS:Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 1B058

iNSURERC:The First Liberty Insurance Coxrooratior 33588

INSURER 0:

INSURERE:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:20-21 CL, Auto, Umb, WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TOS:
JtiSQ.TYPE OF INSURANCE

ID5IT

XUD. POLICY NUMBER
POUCYEFF

(MM/DOTfYYYI
POLICY E*P
IMM/OD/YYYYI

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrenol

PHPK21S7472 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 MED EXP (Any OfW pfton)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

□POUCY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT -
(Ep »cc»d«nil

1,000,000

100,000

25,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1,000,000

ANYAUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY {Par parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

PHPK2ie746e 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 BODILY INJURY (Par aeddani)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acdOeni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS4MDE

EACH OCCURRENCE 10,000,000

AGGREGATE 10,000,000

RETENTION S PHUB74035S 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETORffARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yas, dascrlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

PER
STATIJTF

OTH-

T I n

□
E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

HC6-611-2«2252-OiO 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

e.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Profasalonal Liability PHPK2ia7472 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 Aporaflat* Lima

Each Piolassional incWani

$3,000,000

si.oooiooo

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional RamarVa SchaduM. may ba attaehad If mort apaea It raqulrad)
Additional Named Insured: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

MH Department of Health £ Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE

James Hays/GSCHIC,

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Q

^ Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-1, Concord, NH 03301
ascentria.org j 603.224.8111 | lnfo@ascentria.org

Formerly LuiherBn Social Services of New England

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve their full

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leadersfor

innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organizations), which comprise the consolidated statements of'
financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, .and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

®A member of
Nexia
Intprnatlf^nal

A member of

(1)
International
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As discussed in. Note 1 to the financial statements, the Organizations have adopted Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The
adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the Organizations' reported historical
revenue. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 22, 2020

(2)



DocuSign Envelope ID; A0B8B4AO-279(MB32-840E-122AA5835DE6

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable. Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts

Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle Inventory

Due from Third Party

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Building
Building Improvements
Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total

Less; Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

2020 2019

$  1,088,674 $

4,618,979 3,868,580

84,975 87,471

128,893 70,292
- 543

5,921,521 4,026,886

841,000 977,537

45,314 45,314

85,798 85,798

968,006 953,881

353,467 353,467

246,311 . 246.311

454,071 344,994

499,374 499,374

147,017 147,017

2,799,358 2,676,156

1,901,549 1,790,804

897,809 885,352

5,781 5,781

101,892 104,742

101,892 104,742

$  7.768.003 $  6.000.298

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2020 2019

CURRENT LIABILITIES.

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Total Current Liabilities

32,752

821,453

1,630,694

311,847

468.768

43,100

922,390

1,055,170

176,471

62.472

3,265,514 2,259,603

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 3,610,245 2,802,397

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liat^ilities

409.782

7,285,541

442,534

5,504,534

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

(443,382)

925,844

482,462

(566,615)

1,062,379

495,764

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) $  7.768.003 $ 6.000.298

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4)



DocuSign Envelope ID: AOBBB4AO-2790-4B32-840E-122AA5835DE6

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue

Program Service Revenue
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

Donated Vehicles

In-Kind Donations

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations
Other Income

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages

Employee Benefits
Occupancy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees

Garage Expenses
Donated Vehicle Expenses

Client Support Expenses
Translation Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses

Educational Events and Meetings
Management Fees
Taxes

Recruitment Advertising
Advertising
Licenses and Fees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization
Total Expenses

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain pn Sale of Property and Equipment
Equity Transfers, Net

Total Nonoperating Activity

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS

2020

10,349

10,349

2019

$ 30,973,224 $ 29,295,558

4,454,814 5,012,348

645,720 -

1,818,418 1,734,097

20,923 22,246

201,348 282,886

680.651 450,077

38,795,098 36,797,212

19,179,196 18,359,186

4,297,125 4,103,776

1,985,030 2,074,571

463,657 444,508

2,244,674 2,393,074

776,542 864,974

924,000 819,292

462.904 546,303

612,048 534,107

"332,791 389,201

794,550 867,166

47,931 43,697

5,395,119 5,020,851

567,842 555,336

10,004 9,918

157,095 181,151

5,094 7,389

12,994 6,009

197,295 190,029

32,965 34,677

52,051 56,981

131,307 97,738

38,682,214 37,599,934

112,884 (802,722)

17,873

(57,346)

(39.473)

123.233 $  (842.195)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2018 $  275,580 $  1,278,529 $  1,554,109

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions .  (842,195) - (842,195)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 66,736 66,736

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (282,886) (282,886)

Change in Net Assets (842,195) (216,150) (1,058,345)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2019 (^6,615) 1,062,379 495,764

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 123,233 - 123,233

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 64,813 64,813

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (201,348) (201,348)

Change in Net Assets (Deficit) 123,233 (136,535) (13,302)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2020 $  f443.382) $  925.844 $  482.462

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Services

Disability ChikJ Total

Transportation

Services

and

Mental Health

and Family

Programs

In-Home

Services

Services For

NevrAmericats

Total

Program

Management

and General Fundraising

Support

Services

Salaries and Wages S  936.410 S 5.540.060 S  3.001,095 $  4,967.565 S 4,472.719 S  18,917.849 S  261,347 S $  261.347

Employee Ben^ts 204.976 1.482.702 559.926 1.098.877 894.519 4.241.000 56,125 56.125

Occupancy Costs 105.843 633.124 441.702 46.262 506.536 1.733.467 251,563 251.563

Operating Supplies and Expenses 32,973 165.585 88.680 45.825 114.506 447.569 16,088 16.088

Professional Fees 61,456 383.971 1.354.705 5,434 391.293 2,196.859 47.815 47.815

Garage and Vehicle Expenses 775,461 916 165 - -
776.542 • •

Donated Vehicle Expenses 924,000 • • • •
924.000

-

-

Client Support Expenses 19.826 31,647 200.925 .  64 210,412 462.874 30 30

Translation E;q}enses . 21,739 282 • 587.030 609.051 2.997 2.997

Repairs and Maintenance •  26.444 38,069 116,558 53.938 71.180 306,189 26.602 26.602

Travel Expenses 191.640 201.678 136.374 43.072 214.719 787.483 7.067 7.067

Educational Events and Meetings 2.067 9.036 8.311 10.139 9.118 38.671 9.260 9.260

Management Fees . - • - - •
5.395.119 5,395.119

Taxes - 561.640 • 5.931 271 567.842 - •

Recruitment Advertising 3.555 884 1.404 3.691 373 9.907 97 97

Advertising . • • • • -
157.095 157,095

Licenses and Fees 1.691 70 2,696 250 •
4,707 387 387

Custodial Fees . - - • - - •
. 12.994 12.994

Insurance 8,014 57.285 34,105 41,583 51.611 192,598 4.697 •
4.697

Interest . - . - - • 32.965
-

32.965

Bad Debt Expenses - 3.863 . 37,684 10.503 52.050 1 -
1

Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortization

Total Functional Expenses

3.294.356

55.338

9.132.269

2.852

5.946.928

69,917

6,360.315 7.534,790

3.200

32.268.658

131,307

6.269.255 12.994 6,282.249

$  3.349.694 $ 9.135,121 $  6.016.845 S  6.360.315 S 7.537.990 $  32.399,965 S  6.269.255 $  12.994 S 6.282.249

Total

Expenses

19,179.196

4,297.125

1.985.030

463,657

2.244.674

776,542

924,000

462.904

612.048

332.791

794,550

47,931

5,395.119

567.842

10.004

157.095

5.094

12,994

197,295

32.965

52.051

38.550.907

131.307

38.682.214

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Program Services

Disability .  Child

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program

Salaries and Wages S  968,707 $ 5,735,567 S  2,715,258 % 3,953,013 S 4.759.294 $  18,131,839

Employee Benefits 236,075 1,462,866 516,804 910,093 869,958 3,995,796.

Occupancy Costs 146,268 655,710 464,178 49,184 515,830 1,831,170

Operating Supplies and Expenses 27,189 206,160 64,069 30,160 88,896 416,474

Prolessional Fees 134,610 387,997 1,540,130 8,646 257,587 2,328,970

Garage and Vehicle Expenses 862,333 2,555 • • 86 864,974

Donated Vehicle Expenses 819,292 • - - - 819,292

Client Support Expenses 71 10,162 180,737 22 354,831 545,823

Translation Expenses • 30,484 357 - 498,641 529,482

Repairs and Maintenance 49,833 38,191 100,064 72,631 101,896 362,615

Travel Expenses 152,833 228,390 163,221 36,645 272,283 853,372

Educational Events and Meetings 3,164 4,164 14,617 6,798 8,202 36,945

Management Fees ■ • • - - •

Taxes 502 543,621 • 11,132 81 555,336

Recruitment Advertising 2,133 215 3,271 3,771 338 9,728

Advertising
- - - ■ - •

Licenses and Fees 637 146 3,832 250 563 5,428

Custodial Fees • - - ■ - -

Insurance 7,062 59,721 28,969 41,193 49,077 186,022

Interest - - • • ■

Bad Debt Expenses 188 10,978 . 18,229 27,586 56,981

Total B^ore Depreciation

and Amortization 3.410,897 9,376,927 5,795,507 5,141J67 7,805,149 31,530,247

Depreciation and Amortization 26,217 6,041 53,607 . 11,785 97,650

Total Functional Expenses $  3,437,114 $ 9,382,968 $  5,849,114 S 5,141,767 $ 7,816.934 S  31.627,897

Supporting Services

Management

and General

Total

Support

Fundraising Services

Total

Expenses

$  227,347 S $  227,347 S 18,359.185

107,980 107,980 4,103.776

243,401 243,401 2,074,571

28,034 28,034 444,508

64,104 64,104 2,393,074

• • 864,974

• • 819,292

480 480 546,303

4.625 4.625 534,107

26,586 26.586 389,201

13.794 13,794 867,166

6,752 6,752 43,697

5,020,851 * 5.020,851 5,020,851

• - 555,336

190 190 9,918

181,151 181,151 181,151

1,961 1,961 7,389

- 6.009 6,009 6,009

4,007 4,007 190,029

34.677 34,677 34,677

- - 56,981

5,965,940 6,009 5,971,949 37,502,196

88 • . 88 97,738

$  5,966,028 $ 6,009 $ 5,972,037 $ 37,599,934

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Bad Debts

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Deposits

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

Vehicle Inventory

Due to Third Party
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment
Proceeds from. Sale of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Long-Term Debt
Advanced from Related Parties, Net

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents • Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

2020 2019

$  (13,302) $  (1,058,345)

131,307 97,738

52,051 56,981

(10,349) (17,873)
(64,813) (66,736)

(802,450) (583,196)

2,496 16,431

2,850 37,534'

201,350 287,285

(58,601) (4,964)
543 885

(100,937) 5,976

575,524 110,986

135,376 (40,612)
406,296 (118,938)

457,341 (1,276,848)

(148,710) . (232,172)
15,295 22,902

(133,415) (209,270)

(43,100) (48,988)
807,848 1,361,351

764,748 1,312,363

1,088,674 (173,755)

- 173,755

$  1.088.674 J_

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest 32.965 _5. 34.677

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
{collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organizations from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG). related
parties, as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The
Organizations provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and
developmentally disabled adults throughout. New England. ACS is the sole corporate
member of ACC. Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of
ACS and also serves as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Child and Family Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

Services for New Americans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

Transportation Services - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and .Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental illness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

In-Home Services - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, non-medical personal care services to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional non-medical services supervised by a registered nurse.

(10)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends, Credit is extended .to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Inventorv

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the

vehicle is received.

(11)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulation
about how long those assets must be maintained, expiration of donor restrictions are
reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed Into service.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest-bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its. estirnates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30. 2020 and 2019.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperfonmance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations:

(12)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction

expires, that is. when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor

restrictions consist of $841,000 and $977,537 for beneficial interest in net assets of
related party and $84,844 and $84,842 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. There were no net assets Invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the
period when earned. The Organizations recognize contributions when cash, securities or
other assets, or an unconditional promise to give is received! Conditional promises to give,
that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return, are not
recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same

operating period are presented as unrestricted support. Contributions in the form of property
are recorded at the fair market value on the date the property is received.

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30. 2020, there was. $2,531,968 of
conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

During 2020, the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide funding to
respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Organizations received payments from the
CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF); which is administered by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $184,667 during fiscal year 2020. The revenues
recognized are included in federal and state relief grant revenue on the consolidated
statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and conditions that the Organization
is required to follow and these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The
PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by HHS if it is determined that the funds
were not spent in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the
amounts have been recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2020.

Additionally, the Organization received payments from the State of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
Organization received payments and recognized revenue in the amount of $461,053 during
the fiscal year 2020. The revenues recognized are included in federal and state relief grant
revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The payments have terms and
conditions that the Organization Is required to follow and these funds are subject to reporting
requirements and audit. The payments are subject to potential recoupment by GOFERR if it
is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms and conditions.
Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of June 30
2020.

Program Service Revenue

Program sen/ice revenue is from private pay services, translation services, and
interpretation services. Program service revenue is recognized as services are provided
overtime.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $105,943 and $118,678 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $20,923 and $22,246 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to Section
501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets.and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level l) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value by the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels,of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Change in Accounting Principles

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic
606; Revenue from Contracts with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC). Topic 606 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 605,
Revenue Recognition, and requires the recognition of revenue when promised goods or
services are transferred to'customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Organizations
adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of July 1, 2018, utilizing the full
retrospective method of transition. There was no material impact on the Organizations'
financial position and results of operations upon adoption of the new standard.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Change In Accounting Principles (Continued)

Additionally, in June 2018, FASB issued Accounting Standards (ASU) 2018-08, Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Made. This ASU was issued to clarify accounting
guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The aniendments to this ASU
assists entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as
contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-profit
Entities, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and
(2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. These consolidated financial
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-08 beginning July 1, 2018. There was no
material impact on the Organizations' financial position and results of operations upon
adoption of the new standard.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No, 2016-02, Leases, which is a comprehensive
lease accounting standard that requires entities that lease assets (lessees) to recognize the
assets and related liabilities for the rights and obligations created by the leases on the
balance sheet for leases with terms exceeding 12 months. The lessee in a tease will be
required to initially measure the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, as well as capitalize initial direct costs as part of the right-
of-use asset. The FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective date for the
Organizations until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021, however, early
application is permitted. The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact this guidance
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclasslfications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to. the
accompanying consolidated financial statements to maintain consistency between periods
presented. The reclasslfications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subseguent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 22, 2020,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in^ the
amount of $841,000 and $977,537 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organizations had a loan payable, included in accrued
expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 and $340,524, respectively. Contributed assets are
transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with the approval of
Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties:

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
sen/ices totaled approximately $5,321,947 and $4,928,088 for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These expenses have been included on the
statement of activities under the caption Management Fees. In addition, Ascentria is
the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and insurance costs are then
billed monthly to the. Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$12,994 and $6,009 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$137,545 and $119,254 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $391,487 and $454,395 for
the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

•  Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
asfollows:

2020 2019

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.
Emanuel Development Corporation

$  5,632

149

$ 5,632

149

Total S  5.781 ? 5.781

2020 2019

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. $  3,610,245 $ 2,802,397

Total $  3.610.245 ? 2.802.397

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution thrift plan {the thrift plan) qualifying
under IRC Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The thrift plan permits discretionary
employer contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and
employee contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30;

2020

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

2019

$ 4,663,528 $  3,896,798

(44,549) (28,218)

4.618.979 $  3.868.580

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through .which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations' revenue was received from, state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Due from Related Parties

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to related parties. The balance due from related
parties totaled $5,781 at June 30, 2020.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $841,000 at
June 30, 2020.

Accounts Receivable. Net

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $4,618,979 at June 30, 2020.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment. Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 tolO Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $131,307 and $97,738 for the years ended June 30.
2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides sen/ices for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $496,000
.and $62,000 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Adjustments to
these estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption
grant and contract revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final
settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2020 and 2019 as follows:

Description Amount 2019

Note Pavable

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7, 2033. secured by business
assets, payable in monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly-payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fixed at 7.105% annually. $  183,082 $  199,377

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an'
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. 258,306 271,355

Caoital Lease Obliaations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2020, with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200
with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%. 1,146 14,902

Total Long-Term Debt 442,534 485,634 '

Less: Current Maturities (32,752) (43,100)

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $  409.782 $  442.534

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30. Amount

2021 $■ 32,752
2022 33,944
2023 36,454
2024 39,087
2025 42,403

Thereafter 257,894
Total $ 442.534

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $32,965 and
$34,677 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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ASCENTWA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of 1 to 3 years. Total rent and related expenses
amounted to $1,099,443 and $1,056,543 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows;

Year Ending June 30.

2021

2022

2023

Total

Amount

517,288

257,120

245,505

$  1.019.913

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous health care
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

ACS and Ascentria have entered into an equity sharing agreement related to four properties
transferred from Ascentria to the ACS on July 1, 2001. The agreement states that if the
properties are sold or leased to a third party, approximately 40% of the proceeds will
become payable to Ascentria. Such payment represents the excess of fair value of the
properties transferred over their net book value as of July 1, 2001. A significant portion of
the Organizations' revenues are derived from state and federal government funding. Due to
current economic conditions, it is possible that funding from these sources could be reduced
in the near term. The Organizations cannot determine at this time if funding levels will
change, or what financial impact, if any, potential changes would have on the Organizations.

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,500,000 as of June 30. 2020 and
2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how

the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2020 and 2019;

2020

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 841,000 $ ,$ $ ,841,000

841.000 -  $ $ 841.000

2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 977,537 $ $ $ 977,537

$ 977.537 -  $ $ 977.537

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Balance - July 1, 2018

Income, Net of Releases

Balance - July 1, 2019
Income, Net of Releases

Balance - July 1, 2020

$  . 1,198,086

(220,549)

977,537

(136,537)

$  841.000

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organizations regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Organizations consider all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12

months, the Organizations operate a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organizations consider the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

2020 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable, Net

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year

$  1,088,674 $

4,618,979 3,868,580

5,707,653 3,868,580

(84,844) (84,842)

$  5.622.809 $  3.783.738

NOTE 14 ASSETS TRANSFERS

On June 26, 2019, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS), and Good News Garage -
LSS, Inc. (GNG) combined their operations. The Organizations provide community services
programs and were combined to further their common mission by improving their community
services programs and achieving economies of scale and other synergies through
integration of services. As a result of the combination, the surviving organization is ACS.

The Organizations followed the guidance related to transactions between entities under
common control to record the transition as Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (ACA) is the sole
corporate member of both entities. As a result of this transaction, the net assets of the
transferring organization will be accounted for at the carrying amount as of the beginning of
the reporting period in which the transfer occurs. Therefore, effective July 1, 2018, the
carrying amount of net assets of GNG were transferred to ACS. As of July 1, 2018, the
following was the respective carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, and net assets
transferred:

Total Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Liabilities

Total Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

824,075

42,309

307,808

516,267

29,814

486,453
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 15 COVID-19 IMPACT

In 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavinjs (COVID-19) a
worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global
markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. In response to the pandemic and in
an effort to supplement lost revenues and support increased costs incurred to secure
personal protective equipment, the federal and state governments issued stimulus payments
to the Organizations. See Note 1 for information on funding received by the Organizations in
2020.

COVID-19 may also impact various parts of the. Organizations' 2021 operations and
financial results including but not limited to additional costs for emergency preparedness,
disease control and containment, potential shortages of health care personnel, or loss of
revenue due to reductions in certain revenue streams. Management believes that the
Organizations are taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the
full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and. cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30,
2020.
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

FY2021 Board and Committee Membership

Board of Directors & Corporate Officers

William Mayo (Chair) Rev. Ross Goodman (Vice Chair)

Karen Gaylin (Secretary) Garth Greimann (Financial Secretary)

Arigela Bovill (Ex-Officio w/Vote) Scott Hamilton

Frederick Jenoure Stacey Luster, JD

Sherri Pitcher Keith Robertson

Barbara Ruhe Kimberly Salmon

Peter Schmidt

Angela Bovill (President) Jeanette Wade (EVP)

Jeff Kinney (EVP) Nicholas Russo (Treasurer)

Tara Browne (Clerk)

Last Updated: Monday, September 9, 2019Tuesdav, June 1, 2021

1 I P a R e .



OocuSign Envelope ID; A0BBB4A0-279CMB32-840E-122AA5835DE6

Vijay Bhujel

WORK EXPERIENCE

Ascentria Care Alliance

Health Case Manager January 2016-November 2017, February 2018 to Current
Client Services

-  Serve refugees during their initial period of resettlement by facilitating access to hospitals, clinics and office
visits. This includes ensuring that refugees have appropriate assistance for appointments including
transportation and interpretation and liaising with service providers to ensure culturally appropriate and high
quality care.
Schedule initial health screenings for refugees in accordance with contractual standards. Make any
necessary pre-arrival arrangements for complex medical cases.
Responsible for providing effective leadership to Health Case Management team and delivering quality
services to the individuals served.

Partner Relations and Coordination

-  Serve as primary contact for health, mental health and specialty health care providers; coordinates with
agencies on services refugees' access and follows up on individual cases as needed.

Serve as a liaison between human ser\'ice agencies and social ser\'ices organizations and refugees to
facilitate access to services that promote the Social Determinants of Health.

-  Oversee maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.

-  Networks and develops relationships with potential providers.

-  Provide and/or promote educational offerings to health and social ser\'ice organizations regarding
culturally and linguistically appropriate services

Community Health Worker November 2017-February 2018
Served as a liaison between Nashua area health and social services organizations and refugees and
immigrants to facilitate access to services and improve the quality and cultural competence of service
delivery.

-  Oversaw maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.

-  Networked and developed relationships with potential providers.
Created and supported connections with government agencies, provider associations, and community
members.

Promoted educational offerings to health and social service organizations regarding culturally and
linguistically appropriate services.

Bicultural Coordinator June 2013 to January 2016
Increased coordination and collaboration among elderly service providers, ethnic community and refugee
elders.

-  Assisted older Bhutanese Refugee with accessing mainstream aging services.
Developed additional culturally and linguistically relevant activities for older refugees.

Community Bridges of NH
Direct Support Provider February 2014 to Current

-  Provide direct support to individuals with disabilities such as transportation to daily activities in the
community, which includes exercising, volunteering, social activities and work.
Promote and engage individuals with disability in activities that meet the objectives contained in his
Individual Service Plan, with an emphasis on living independently.
Responsible for administering medication of the individuals with disabilities.
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Record keeping of individual's daily activities and also responsible for reporting the monthly progress
notes to the Program Manager

Wal-Mart Supercenter Concord, NH
Inventory Associate March 2013-June 2013

Unloading and stocking of new merchandise. Customer support and ser\'ice.

Reliance English School - Morang, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2007-2012

-  Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 8 through 10.
Designed and presented comprehensive lesson plans ensuring that each student could retain and understand
each lesson. Acted as the "Academic in Charge" for testing of students and teachers.
Developed unit-based projects to tie cuiriculum to real life.

The Spangle High School - Kathmandu, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2004-2007

Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 6 through 10.
Planned and implemented science and math curriculum to improve retention and test scores.
Acted as Resident Advisor to students living in a dormitory setting. Responsible for the school's discipline
policies and procedures as well as student disciplinary decisions.

Panchaoti English School - Jhapa, Nepal 1999-2004
Community School Teacher

-  Assigned various disabled students and provided them with learning support, personal care and help with
the school to home transitions.

-  Taught mathematics and sciences to students in grades 6 through 10. Introduced stimulating and engaging
lessons to capture the students' attention and interest. Provided clear and consistent directions to keep
students focused on the task.

Coordinated with colleagues to share best practices and address academic issues.

Cultural In Charge
- Worked as Cultural In Charge in Panchaoti English School, helping students adjust to new culture trends.

Coordinated the Bhutanese Refugee Children in the field of cultural arts.
Worked as a curriculum developer to prepare lesson plans and work with administrators to ensure that the
curriculum meets professional standards.
Engaged students through music, visual arts, dance, languages, and theater performance to enrich them
with cultural values.

-  Monitored the classroom and assigned special projects that utilize creative expression as a means of
cultural edification.

EDUCATION

Tri Ratna Secondary School
High School Diploma

1994-1998

Kumudini Homes

Associate's Degree

1998-2000

Government- College of Kalimpong
University of North Bangal
B.S.C Science- Physics

2000-2003



DocuSign Envelope ID; A08BB4A0-2790-4B32-840E-122AA5835OE6

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijay Bhuiel Health Case Manager 537,835.20 .50 $18,917.60
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JcITrcy A. Meyers
Commissioner

Trinidad L. Tcilez, MD

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER
I

OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY

97 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
■603-271-3986 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 3986 .

Fox: 603-271-0824 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov/omh

/

May 7, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity, to
amend existing sole source agreements with the vendors identified below, for the provision of
health care coordination reception and placement services that will ensure all newly arriving
refugees to the State of New Hampshire complete the requirements of the US. Domestic
Medical Examination, by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $645,012 to
$1,005,012 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2018, to June 30, 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original contracts were
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on May 6, 2015 (Item #12). 100% Federal
Funds. -

Vendor
Vendor
Number

Location
Current
Budget

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Budget

Ascentria
Community

Services, Inc.

222201-
B001

261 Sheep Davis
Road Suite A-1

Concord NH 03301
$322,506 $180,000 $502,506

International
Institute of

New England,
Inc. (f/k/a

International
Institute of

Boston, Inc.)

177551-
B001

2 Boylston Street, 3rd
Floor, Boston, MA

02116
$322,506 $180,000 $502,506

Total: $645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Funds to support this agreement are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Years 2018 and 2019 and are anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office,
without fOrther approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

010-042-79220000-500731 -42200010

HEALTH REFUGEE SERVICES

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: MINORITY

SPY Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $45,954 $0 $45,954

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686

2017 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $0 $120,000 $120,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $0 $120,000 $120,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $0 $120,000 $120,000

Total: $645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Department was required to name the two (2)
vendors who will provide reception and placement services when applying for federal funding
to support New Hampshire's Refugee Resettlement Program, as approved by the Office of
Refugee Resettlement.

International Institute of New England, inc. was formerly known as the International
Institute of Boston, Inc. when this contract was originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council. There was a name change completed in 2016 with no change to staffing or
services.

The vendors must ensure the refugees receiving resettlement and placement services
have the ability to successfully complete all components of the US Domestic Medical
Examination within ninety (90) days of first arriving to the United States. If the initial US
Domestic Medical Examination reveals the need for specialty care, dental services, or mental
health services, the vendors must assist new arrivals with obtaining any needed referrals and
follow-up care that is necessary.

Pursuant to Section 412 (c) (6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 USC1522
(c) (6), states are required to provide resettlement and placement services to all refugees
entering the United States. Ascentria, Inc. and the International Institute of New England, Inc.
both provide resettlement and placement services for the federal government directly.
However, those services provided to refugees through their federal agreements do not include
services related to completing the US Domestic Medical Examination.

The Department named these two (2) vendors in the State of New Hampshire's 2018
State Plan for the Refugee Resettlernent to ensure each refugee can experience continuity of
services by having, one liaison who can coordinate timely completion of the US Domestic
Medical Examination, which may include multiple appointments and providers. By entering
into amendments of existing contracts with the two (2) vendors who resettle the refugees and
already provide most of the reception and placement services, the Department is ensuring
continuity of services to individuals who may not understand the health screening component
of the resettlement process, and who otherwise may not be accessible to other organizations.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher!. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

■ Health care coordination reception and placement services include the assignment of
health care case coordinators, also known as liaisons, who are responsible for ensuring that
refugees understand the importance of each appointment and how to access available
transportation services. They also coordinate appropriate language assistance for each
appointment, as well as referrals and follow-up care for any complex medical conditions, acute
mental health and dental issues identified during the initial US Domestic Medical Examination.

Should Governor and Executive Council not support this request, refugees entering
New Hampshire may not receive the required medical examinations, pursuant to Section 412
which could result in a violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 USC 1522 (c)
(6). Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funding: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA# 93.566, FAIN # 1801NHRCMA.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Trinidad L. Tellez, MO
Director

Approved by:
Je%4y A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services

Amendment#!

International Institute of Boston, Inc. (Vendor# 177551-B001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $22,977 $0 $22,977

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

Total $322,506 $180,000 $502,506

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 222201-B001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for

Proflram Services

42200010 $22,977 $0 $22,977

2016 102-500731 Contracts for

Proqram Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2017 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services
42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2019 102-500731 Contracts for

Pro.qram Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services
42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2021 102-50073.1 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

Total $322,506 $180,000 $502,506

Grand

Total

$645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services
Page 1 of.1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Reception and Placement Services Contract
This 1*' Amendment to the Reception and Placement Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") dated this 17th day of April, 2018. is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Ascentria Community Services. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Vendor"), a nonprofit corporation
with a place of business at 261 Sheep Davis Road Suite A-1, Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2015 (Item #12). the Vendor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Vendor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

I

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$502,506.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number., to read:

603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 3. Reporting Requirements, Paragraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3 The Vendor shall submit any other de-identified, aggregate data indicators required by
the Office of Refugee Resettlement related to the initial U.S. Domestic Health
Examination, as specified by the State Refugee Health Coordinator.

6. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 4. Delivery of Services, Paragraph 4.2 and replace
as follows:

4.2 The Vendor shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per quarter as described in
Section 2.3.

Ascentrta Community Services, Inc Amendment #1
Page 1 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

7. Delete Exhibit B-5, Invoice Sheet, and replaced with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1. Invoice Sheet.

8. Add Exhibit 8-6, SFY19 Budget.

9. Add Exhibit B-7. SFY20 Budget.

10. Add-Exhibit 8-8. SFY21 Budget.

11. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Ascentria Community Services, Inc Amendment #1
Page 2 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: 'T'iPLLA

Title:

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

Date

Title:

Acknowledgement of Vendor's signature:

State of Dru) . County of on S • t ̂  , before the undersigned officer.
personally appeareo the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Aflu M. /'»fiAUr4
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: IP )JbU>
•v ''.V

Ascentria Community Services, inc Amendment #1

Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

y-

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execufon.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and ExecuUve Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc Amendment #1

Page 4 of 4



Exhibit B-5 • Amendment HI Invoice Sheet W

CASE COORDINATION OF INmAL REFUGEE DOMESTIC MEDtCAl EXAMINATION • INVOICE DETAIL

CASE COORDINATOR SERVICES LNSPORTATION INTERPRETATION TOTAL

jpA Name Client

Serviced'
Date of ArrVal

Penon

Code (ACS

OnW

Vtrificatlon of

Refueee/
Asylee Status

Activity Date Activity Type Condition

Unit

Hme*-*

MO.tXV
hour

Sub-total Case

Coordination

• elmHesK

.S4S cents/

mile

Sub-total I"'*
1 *$49.50/miles 1 hour

SuthtotaJ 1
interpretation 1

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO 1 $0.00
0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO 1 SO.OO

• 0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO U SO.OO i SO.OO
0 $0.00 0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO 1 SO.OO
0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO U S0.00 i S0.00
0 $0.00 •  0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO 1 SO.OO
0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO 1 so.ro So.ro

0 $0.00 0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO SO.OO 1
D SO.OO 0 SO.OO 1 so.ro $0.00

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO 1 SO.OO SO.OO 1
0 $0.00 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO 1

• 0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO SO.OO so.ro 1
0 SO.OO ' 0 SO.OO So.ro so.ro

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO S0.00 so.ro

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO S0.00 S0.00

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO SO.OO so.ro

0 SO.DO 0 SO.OO SO.OO so.ro

0 SO.OO R 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

0 SO.OO y 0 SO.OO SO.OO so.ro

0 SO.OO 1 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

0 SO.OO y 0 SO.OO SO.OO so.ro

0 $0.00 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO 1

0 $0.00 0 SO.OO so.ro SO.OO 1
0 SO.OO 0- SO.OO 1 SO.OO S0.00 1
0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO 1
0 S0.00 1 0 SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO 1

1  « 0 SO.OO 1 0 SO.OO SO.OO 1 SO.OO 0

Exhibit B-S Amendment 91 -

Page 1 of 1
Vendor Initials

Date



ExMbct

SFY19 8odflet

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BlddwrPregmm Name: Asceniila Cemmuntiy Servteaa, Inc

Budget Requui tor ReeepBen and Placement Servlees

Budget Period: SFY19(7/1/201S-(r30/2019l

-•-rfjSSV - Siygjgir\j^^^'T>iATotai Program Coattaj. aa Comraetor Share I Match ocfcrr i'iia.'i -rr.'-j^KV Funded IrrDHHS share »ui M
>.•1% Direct^';

^
Infract

'.^Rxed .VV^ir•^A
Total

r Irteraraertca . C':
. . Indirect ^

R
•  ♦Total iL-i.---.;.lAcremenU 'jLJncf«m»nui acedTotal 8«ter>Wao»< ii\^toe

44.0002. Cfflptaioo Benofts 44.000
3. Conii#.anii )0 10^ y0200Eouipmont: 10^

Renttf
Ropatf and M^ftteneiio

5. SuppfM
Educstionaf
Lab

Pt>afm0cv
Modlcal

Trayol looo
s.oooOec S.OOO

8. CMfftm Expmrt
Talaohon*
POttM
Stioacroyom
AkmM and Laoal
imirartea

Board Eacponaaa
8. Som«r%
10. MaffceiirwCofwnonicabooa
11. SiaA Educ8bor>aAd Tr
12,_Subceoirecta/Aof4ements
13. Other (interpretdfa):

TOTAL 80.000 80.000
60.000Indiraet Aa A Pareem ol Direei 60.0000.00%

Aaeentfla Community Service*. Inc.
ExMMB-e
P^ 1 or 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of coptrol, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than

. authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.Sl Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one. party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by ■

the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

.4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a •
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
DHHS information

Security Requireriients W /
Page 1 of 9 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and

. approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall rhean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. the .Contractor must not uSe, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2016 ExhibitK Contractor Initials.
DHHS infonnation

Sacurlly Requirements
Page 2 of 9 Date ■i'( >
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to ,be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security arid that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable. Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit

' Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open-

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor initials

DHHS Information

Security Requirementsiiiiy rstfquiieiiienid i ^
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure" the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hbur auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all

data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in-whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

•  securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The. written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements vvill be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction..

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days , of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted sen/ices.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protectirig Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting, any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for. State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal, process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the sun/ey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach .and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not iirhited to: credit rnonltoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not (ess than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology, policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official.duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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0. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,

/  such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this

,  Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI-in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.i2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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Nicholas A. Toumpas
Cominissloner

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate

Commissioner

8.-
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

^1/

OftS 1^'
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MINORITY HEALTIt& REFUGEE AFFAIRS
/

97 PLEASANT STREET CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-3986 1-800-662-3345 Ext. 3986

Fax: 603-271-0824 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 2, 2015

Her Excellency,. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Minority
Health & Refugee Affairs, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors
identified below, for the provision of reception and placement services that will ensure
all newly arriving refugees to the State of New HamjDshire complete the requirements of
the US Domestic Medical Examination, in an amount not to exceed $645,012, effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2018. 100% Federal
Funding.

Vendor Vendor

Number

Location Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201-

B001

261 Sheep Davis Road Suite A-1
Concord NH 03301

$322,506

International

Institute of Boston,
Inc.

177551-

B001

One Milk Street

Boston MA 02103
.  $322,506

Total: $645,012

Funds to support this agreement are available in the following account for State
Fiscal Year 2015 and are anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Years 2016, 2017,
and 2018 upon the availability arid continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, without ^rther approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hasson
And Ibe Honorable Council

Page Page 2 of 3

010-042-79220000-500731-42200010 HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: MINORITY
HEALTH REFUGEE SERVICES

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 $45,954
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 .  $199,686
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 $199,686
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 $199,686

Total: $645,012

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Department was required to name the
two (2) vendors who will provide'reception and placement sen/ices when applying for
federal funding to support New Hampshire's Refugee Resettlement Program, as
approved by the Office of Refugee Settlement.

, The vendors must ensure the refugees receiving resettlement and placement
services have the ability to successfully complete all components for US Domestic
Medical Examination within ninety days of first arriving to the United States. If the initial
US Domestic Medical Examination reveals the need for specialty care, dental services,
or mental health services, the vendors must assist new arrivals with obtaining any
needed referrals and follow-up care that is necessary.

Pursuant to Section 412 (c) (6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8
USC1522 (c) (6), states are required to provide resettlement .and placement services to
all refugees entering the United States. Ascentria, Inc. and the International Institute of
Boston. Inc. both provide resettlement and placement sen/ices for the federal
government directly. - However, those sen/ices provided to refugees through their
federal agreements do not include services related to completing the US Domestic
Medical Examination.

The Department named these two vendors in the State of New Hampshire's
2015 State Plan for the Refugee Resettlement to ensure each refugee can experience
continuity of services by having one liaison who can coordinate timely completion of the
US Domestic Medical Examination, which may include multiple appointrpents and
providers. By entering into contract with the two vendors who already provide some
resettlement and placement services, the Department is ensuring continuity of sen/ices
to Individuals who may otherwise not understand the resettlement process.
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Reception and placement services include the assignment of health care case
coordinators, also known as liaisons, who are responsible for ensuring that refugees
understand the importance of each appointment and how to access available
transportation services. They also coordinate appropriate language assistance for each
appointment, as well as referrals and follpw-up care for any complex medical
conditions, acute mental health and dental issues identified during the Intitlal US
Domestic Medical Examination.

Should Governor and Executive Council not support this request, refugees
entering New Hampshire may not receive the required medical examinations, pursuant
to Section 412 which could result in a violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act
(INA), 8 use 1522 (c) (6). New Hampshire citizens could be at risk of exposure to a
higher volume of illness and/or disease due to the lack of appropriate treatment
required during the US Domestic Medical Examination.

Area Served; Statewide

Source of Funding: 100% Federal

■ Respectfully submitted,

Aary

late

Cooney——
Commissioner

Approved by:
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission Is to join communities, and families in
providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. ■
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Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services

International Institute of Boston, Inc. (Vendor# 1775S1-B001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $22,977
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Selvices 42200010. $99,843

Total $322,506

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor# 222201-8001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Budget

2015 .  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $22,977
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 ■ $99,843
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843

Total $322,506
Grand Total $645,012

Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services
Page 1 of 1
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Reception and Placement Services

AGREEMENT
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.
l.l State Agency Name

NH Department ofHcallh & Human Services
Office ofMinoriiy Health & Refugee Affairs

1.2 State Agency Address

97 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

261 Sheep Davis Road Suite A-
Concord.NH 03301

l.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-811 1

1.6 Account Number

OI0-042-79220000-500731-

422000IO

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

S322.506

1.9 Contracting Officer forStatc Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9558

1.1,1 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

\tO0
1.13 Acknowledgement; State of U\A . County of ^

On_^/l|l5bcforc the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12. or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block I. II. and acknowledged that s/hc c.xccuied this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12. '
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Jjistice of the Peace

I(Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

ALANA GEARY
Notary Public

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
My rjvnmUdnn Pitp;f«»»

August 3. 20tB

1.14 State Agcnw Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

AcxA jOi

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Aflsirinlstration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorncy^cneral (Form, Substance and Execution)

Ky \J \J ̂  \/ V
1.18 Approval by the Governor a^^ Executive

By:

utive'Council (

On:

| '

Page 1 or4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Slate ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency.identincd in block I.I ("State"), engages
contractor idcnllflcd in block 1.3 ("Coniracior") to pcrrorm.
and the Coniracior shall perform, ihc work or sale of goods, or
boih, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference •
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Nolwithsianding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereundcr, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become cfTcctive. the State shall have no liability to the
Coniracior, including wlihoui limitation, any obligation lo pay
Ihe Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Complciion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwiihstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right lo withhold
payment until Such funds become available, ifcver. and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer fund.s from any other account
lo the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds In that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the'complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
shall have ho liability to the Contractor other than the coniracl
price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
othcrwi^ payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement lo the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances.'in
no event shall Ihe total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr, exceed the Price [.imitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Servjces. the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not lirnllcd to, civil rights and equal opportunity
taws. Ir\ addition, the Cdntractor'shall complyAvith all
applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin.and will lake
afTirmativc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access lo any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aficr the
Complciion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hirc;
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort lo
perform the Services to hirc. any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially Involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survivc'termination ofLthis
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTicer specified In block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

Page 2 of 4- [>tUL
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDrES.

8.1 Any one or more of the followmg acls or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other eovcnant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8:2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give thc'Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or lc.sscr specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and If the Event of Do fault is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement. cfTcctivc two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice spcci Tying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default: and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word '"data" shall mean all
information and things developed orobtaincd during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, map.s, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished pr unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other c.xi.sting. law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described In the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and Is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members .shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENTmELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise iransrcr any
interest In this Agreement without the prior WTillcn consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the

Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its olTlccrs and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State. Its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acls or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is hereby
reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole e.spcnsc. obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all "
claims of bcxJily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S250.000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and e.xtcnded coverage Insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.M. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furni.sh to the Contracting OITiccr
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a ccriificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrlificatc(s) of
insurance for ail rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
c.xpiralion dale of each of the insurance policies. The
certificale(s) ofinsurancc and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. Each

P8gc3or4 [>uVt
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certiflcale(s) or insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer lo endeavor to provide the Contracting Ofllcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice ofcanccllalion or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer Identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference, "nic State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
ari.se under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation lau-s in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a •
waiver of thc'right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto lo the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the"
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council oflhe State ofNew Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF ACiREEMENT AND TERMS.
TTiis Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNcw Hampshire, and i.s binding upon and
inures to the bcnefil of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and.no rule ofconstruction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be •
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS, the headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the word.s contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILJTV. In the event any oflhe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number ofcountcrparts. each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

• Page 4 of 4
Controcior initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean calendar
days^

1.2. For the purposes of this contract, clients are refugees, as defined by the
Immigration and Nationality Act, Section 101 (a) (42).

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, the .U.S. Domestic Medical Examination is the
required initial medical screening that must be obtained by clients identified in
Section 1.2, above, within 30 - 90 days of arrival to the United States, for
purposes of:

1.3.1. Ensuring medical issues identified in an overseas medical screening are
followed up. '

1.3.2. Identifying individuals who have one or more communicable diseases of
potential public health importance.

1.3.3. Identifying personal health conditions that, if (eft unidentified, could
adversely impact the ability to resettle.

1.3.4. Referring refugees to prjmary care providers for ongoing health care, as
appropriate.

1.4. The Reception and Placement period shall be the Initial thirty (30) to ninety (90)
days In which the client enters the State of New Hampshire.

1.5. All services shall be provided by the Contractor during the initial ninety (90) days
of arriving to the State of New Hampshire.

2. Services to be provided

2.1.The Contractor shall provide case coordination for all components of the U.S.
Domestic Medical Examination for all clients arriving to the State. The
Contractor shall:

2,1.1. Assign one (1) Case Coordinator who has experience working with
refugees or Immigrants who also has a bicultural/bilingual background.
The Case Coordinator shall:

2.1.1.1. Have current knowledge of the U.S. Health Care system.

2.1.1.2. Have case management experience with current case
management practices.

2.1.1.3. Have a Bachelor's Degree in social services, nursing, public
health, medical or health care administration, or equivalent
experience.

Ascenlria Community Services. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Inittala
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

2.1.2. The Contractor shall communicate, facilitate and complete'ail aspects of
case coordination for clients arriving to New Hampshire to ensure the
U.S. Domestic Medical Examination components are completed. The
Contractor shall;

2.1.2.1. Review and retain a copy of each client's 1-94 Form or
Asylee Grant Letter.

2.1.2.2. Ensure language assistance is provided, as necessary, for
each meeting and appointment.

2.1.2.3. Explain the necessity of the U.S. Domestic Medical
Examination to ensure each client understands:

2.1.2.3.1. The reason for each examination component.

2.1.2.3.2. Assistance that will be received throughout the
process.

2.1.2.3.3. The U.S. Department of State requirement to
complete each examination component.

2.1.3. Collect all available overseas medical records for each client and

deliver them, In a timely manner, to the health provider performing the
U.S. Domestic Medical Examination prior to the initial scheduled
appointment(s).

2.1.4. Schedule all client appointments related to the U.S. Domestic Medical
Examination, which include but are not limited to;

2.1.4.1. Laboratory work.

2.1.4.2. TB testing.

2.1.4.3. Lead and other recommended screenings.

2.1.4.4. Immunizations.

2.1.4.5. Physical examinations.

2.1.5. Facilitate transportation to each medical, mental health and dental
appointment.

2.2. The Contractor shall coordinate all necessary specialist services resulting from
initial examinatidns. Coordination shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1. Coordinating referrals/follow up appointments for conditions discovered
during the initial medical exam.

2.2.2. Assisting with access to mental health and dental services, Including
but not limited to language assistance, scheduling appointments and
arranging for transportation to appointments.

2.2.3. Ensuring prescription medications are received by the pharmacy, filled,
picked up and that dosage instructions are understood by the client.

Ascenlria Community Services, loc. Exhibit A Contractor irv'tials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

ar

2.2.4. Assisting clients access emergency care, as needed.
I

2.3. The Contractor shall attend quarterly meetings coordinated by the Department in
order to:

2.3.1. Discuss performance during the previous quarter.

■2.3.2. Identify and address challenges and/or barriers to providing services.
2.3.3. Discuss current caseload and anticipated challenges in needed

supports.

3. Reporting Requirements
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly narrative summary reports to the

Department.
3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit the Department form in Exhibit B-5 on

a monthly basis. ,
4. Delivery of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide case coordination services related to the U.S.
Domestic Medical Examination to all clients eligible for assistance with obtaining
a health screening during the Reception and Placement period, under the
Cooperative Agreement between the Government of the United States of
America and the Contractor, and who are eligible for Refugee Medical
Assistance pursuant to 45 C.F.R. Ch. IV (10-01-06 Edition) Part 400 — Refugee
Resettlement Program.

4.2. The''Contractor shall attend a minimum of eight (8) meetings described in
Section 2.3.

4.3.The Cohtractor shall hire the Case Coordinator in Section 2.1.1 no later than
thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

4.4.The Contractor shall ensure the U.S. Domestic Medical Examination is
completed for each client within ninety (90) days of the client's entry to the State
of New Hampshire.

Ascentria CommunHy Services. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
Page 3 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with federal grant funds anticipated to be available based upon
continued appropriation, which are conditioned upon continued support of the prograrn by
the state and federal governments. The contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services in compliance with funding requirements. Requirements of CFDA Title
#93.566, the. Refugee Entrant Assistance State Administered Programs - Refugee l\,iedical
Assistance Grant, Department of Health and Human Services. Administration for Children
and Families, Office of Refugee Resettlement.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P-
37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor Pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a fee for services basis only fpr actual services, provided.
Services provided shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in
Exhibits B-1 through B-4.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, Sections 3, with an invoice for actual services provided during the month, for
a total of twelve (12) invoices per year.

4.2. The' State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4.3. invoices and reports Identified In Section 3.1 must be submitted to;

Office of Minority Health and Refugee Affairs
y 97 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Section 3.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract
ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in
nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the .price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be, made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and
' Executive Council.

Aiccntria Community Scfvlcea. Inc Exhibit B / Contractor Initials ,
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Exhibit 6-1

SPY 2015

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUOan'PERIOD

Bidder/Project Name: Ascentria immunity Services, Inc.

Budget Request for Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period: 4/8/15 • G/30/1S State Fiscal Year

COMPLETE

2. Employee Benefits

1. Total Salary/Wages .

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

Rental

Repair ar>d Maintenance

Purchase/Oepredatlon

S. Supplies

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephorre

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontraaors/Agreements

13. Other (spedric details mandatorv): Intcrprq

Indirect

TOTAL

14,518.76

7.920.13

538.52

S  22,977.41

$ 14,518.76

S  7,920.13

538.52

S 22,977.41

14,519

7,920

539

22,977

Indirect At • Percent of Direct

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Exhibit B-1

Page 1 of 1

0.00%

14,519

7,920

539

22.977

Contractor Initials:

Da te:
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Exhibit B-2 SFY'2016

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servces
ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bldder/Pro}ect Name: Ascentria CommunitY Services, Inc.

Budcet Request for. Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period: 7/1/lS • 6/30/16 State Budget Year

COMPUTE

a-n

1. ToiilSsUrv/Waces

2. Emplovee Benefio

3. Coreultants

a. Equipment

S. Supplies

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Pufchase/Oepreclatlon

Educational

lab

Pharmacy

Medical

omce

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postaff

Subscriptions

Audit and Letai

Insurance

Board Expenses

9- Software

10. Marteting

U.StaO Education and Training

12. Subcontraoors/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory): Interpre

Indirect

TOTAl
Intfircn As a Percent el Direct

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Exhibit B-2

Page 1 of 1

63.087.50 S

34,414.87

2,340.00

$  99342.37 S

63,03750

34,414.87

2,340.00

99.84237

O.OOK

63,088 $

34,4 IS

2,340

99,843 S

63,088

34,415

2,340

99,843

•pf

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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Exhibit B-3 SEY 2017

New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services

ONE 8U0GET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Proiect Name: Ascentria Comraunity Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Reception & Placement Seruces

Budget Period: 7/1/lfi • 6/30/17 Sute Fiscal Year

COMPLETE

1. Total Satary/Wsges

2- Employee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

S- Supplies

Educational

lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing

11. Staff Education and Training

12: Subcontractors/Agreements

13. Other (specific tletails mandatory): Interpre

Indirect

TOTAL

63.087.50

34,414.87

2,340.00

s.-.i

s  ■ 99,842.37

63,087.50

34.414.87

2,340.00

99,842.37

Indirect As a Percent of Oireci

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

Exhibit 0-3

Page 1 of 1

0.00%

63,088

34.415

2,340

99,843

63,088

34,415

2,340

99,843

Contractor Initials

Date:
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Exhibit 8-4 SFY 2018

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Project Name: Ascerttria CommunKy Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period: 7/1/17 • 6/30/18 State Budget Year

COMPLETE

Indirect Ai a Percent el Direct

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Exhibit B-4

Page 1 of 1

0.00%

;p^3Ei^^edJ>y;PHf^coi)traetsharejSt5:

1. Total Salary/Wages S  63,087 .SO s S 63,087.50 S s s $  63,088 s S' 63,088
2. Employee BeneRts $ s s s s s s S s

3. Cortsultartts S  34,414.87 s S 34,414.87 S s s S  34,41S s S  34.415
4. Equipment s s s  . s s s S s s

Rental s s s s s $ S S s
Repair and Maintenartce s s  - s s s s S. s s

Purchase/Depredation s s s S s s s • s s

5. Supplies s s s s s s S s s
Educaciortal s s $ S s s S s s

Lab s $ s s s s s s s

Pharmacy s s s s s s S s 5
Medical s s s s s s s s s

OHIce s s s s s $ s $ s
6. Travel S  2,340.00 s S  2,340.00 s s s S  2,340 s S  2,340
7. Occupancy s  ■ s s s $ s S s s
8. Current Eipenses s $ $ s s  • s S s s

Telephorte s $ s s s s S s s

Postage s s s $ s s S s s

Subscriptions s s s s s s S s s
Audit and Legal s s s s s s S s s

Insurance s s s s s, s $ s s
Board Expertses s s s s s s s  • - s s

9. Software s s ■ s s s s s s s

10. Marketing s s s s s s s s s

It. Staff Educatiors andTrainirtg s s $ s s s s  " s s

12. Subcontractors/Agreements s $ s s s s s s s

13. Other (specific details mandatory): Interpre s s s s $ s s S  • - s

- s s s s s s s s s

Indirect s s s s s s s
TOTAL S  99,842.37 s S 99,842.37 s s s S  99,843 s S  99,843

Contractor Initials:, Qw/L

Date:



Exhibit B-5 Invoice Sheet

CASE COORDINATION OF INITIAL REFUGEE DOMESTIC MEDICAL EXAMINATION - INVOICE DETAIL

CASE COORDINATOR SERVICES
•

TRANSPORTATION INTERPRETATION TOTAL

Gient Name
Date of

Arrival

VeriHcation of

Refugee /

Asylee Status

Activity Date Activity Type

Unit

Time"* *

S17.50/

hour

Sub-total Case

Coordination

0 of miles X

.45 cents /

mile

Sub-total

miles

Unit time" • *

549.50/hour

Sub-total

Interpretation

"SO.OO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 ■ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 SO.OO SO.OO $0.00

SO.OO SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 . $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

SO.OO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

SO.OO '$0.00' $o:oo $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

1 $0.00 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

[ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 1 SO.OO $0.00 SO.OO

•To be eligible for RMA reimbursement, case coordination services must be related to the facilitation of the various components of the initial domestic medical exam
and take place within the first 90 days of arrival. Acceptable appointment types include; Facilitation of TB skin test or read, chest x-ray, lab work, physical^exam,

immunizations, and initial visit with specialist for a condition discovered / referred during the initial refugee domestic medical examination.
••Rounded to nearest quarter hour.

Contractor Initials

Exhibit 6-S

Page 1 of 1 Date:

:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furttierance of (he aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of indlvlduais such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the deteiminalion forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipieht of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all form's and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be .informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such sen/ice, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in swhich event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials mi
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7.3. Demand repayment of th'e"excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eiiglblllty of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include,-yrlthout limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for. such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to fmancial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for puiposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor tl^t the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not'
directly connected Nvith the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor (rxltlals
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Notwithstandirig anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the repfbil and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the .
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the term's of ihe Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain (he right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. the DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fecility or the "provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection vs^th the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirehients of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and

•  the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan.(EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of (he amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOR Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LER): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
■ Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure

compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirememt To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712"by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

'  (b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing/in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section,
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform (he delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
vrith those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement vwth the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

MMl
Exhibit C - Special Provi&ions Conlraclor Initiala Z/

0M7;u Page 4 of 5 Pale 3'lV'O



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0BBB4A0-2790-4B32-840E-122AA5835DE6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of Oie Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISiONS

1. Subparagraph A of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, (s
replaced as follows:
4. ' CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,

.  Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, (n
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, (he
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have Ihe right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of

the State, 30'days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Slate is exercising its
■ option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 tn the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contraclbr shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

C\.VOHHSfU0713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D;41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subbtle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debanment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or vvill continue to provide a.drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's .
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing doig-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1.. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; ,
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required liy paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

-  1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must-provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Workplace Requrremen'ts •
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s). of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking.one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee "M^o is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementafion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: C

■P * Name:
tuoMJe Vp \
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions-agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C.-1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE r CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Sen/ices Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title,Vi
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Infiuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certificalion be Included in the award
document for sOb-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SI 0,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: St^iUce:), K"!

Date^ T ^ Name: ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certificalion or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)'
determination whether to enter" into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
•voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanlngs set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.'

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transacUon lie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7  The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certirication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower.tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may,-but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9  Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExWbil F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor IntUals
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred,'ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph ([)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
"13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded.from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all losver tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: i^vj.Set'UCCO ,

1 -3A\\\.^
Date" ' Name;

Exhibit f - Certiricatiofi Regarding Debahnent. Suspension Contraclor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply; and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• tfie Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under-this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, arid sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any prograrii or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabiiity. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,16815-66), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt- 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); arid Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExhibitG ....
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: B SC(?PrW\C\ ( .Sf tU CO, ■ \ y]

Date NameT^
\r(^

exnibitG
Contraclor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C ■: Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with'all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:  raT\mu,uii| Ivic

Date ) ^ NameT^
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CPR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and. agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall rhean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meariing as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto!

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). .

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually IdenliHable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I- Conlradof Initials...
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all

-  its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

^d. The Business Associate shallmot, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

... to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibll I Cootraclor tnillala
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disciosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health'information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
. disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

•  ymov
3/2014 ExhIbiM Contfaetor Initials XJ
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such '
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its ofTtces all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the .
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated. Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
t)usiness days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered-Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Withiri ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as spedfied by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business .

3rtOl4 ExnibitI Contractor iniilah
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the .
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has tjeen destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitat[on(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under (his Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
: Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered

Entity's knowledge.of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit i. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVIiscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References." All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Eritity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. x

3/2014 ExrilWt I ' Contraclor Initlab
Health Iruuranco Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement ^11

Page 5 ore Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0BB84AO-279CMB32'84OE-122AA5835DE6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

Seoreaatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit l or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

TheS

Repr

•c

Signature of Authorized

-Tg,(!
Name of Authorized Representative

enta

Name of the Contractor J.

live Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

, ̂  VP I ( hc>
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

3/1-! 1 4u\iK
Bai ^Date

r
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prirne awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date.of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human,Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grarits
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. . Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is riot already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.'
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: IHC

Date' ^ Namely
\cooTitle:

awOMHS/110713 Paflelof2

ExhM J - Certificallon Reflartflnp the Federal Funding Contractor Inilials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompBance -M .1

Paoe1of2 Data ^ V 1 la



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0BBB4AO-279CMB32-840E-122AA5835DE6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

bL- NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount;,

Amount:

Amount:

cuiDHHs/noro
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Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Reception and Placement Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and International
Institute of New England, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2015 (Item 12), as amended on June 6, 2018 (Item 11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$682,506.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631. '

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Paymertt for expenses shall be on a fee for services basis only for actual services provided.
Services provided shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items specified in
Exhibit B-1 SFY 2015 through Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2 SFY 2024 Budget.

6. Add Exhibit B-9, Amendment #2 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-10, Amendment #2 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-01-A02 International Institute of New England, Inc. Contractor Initials:

Jt

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date:
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/1/2021

Date

■DocuSignid by:

Ann H. N. Landry
'iuMSjrepRgwM..

Name: Ann h. n. Landry
Title: Associate commissioner

International Institute of New England, Inc.

5/25/2021

Date

DoeuSlgntd by:

Name: Jeffrey Thielman
Title: president and ceo

SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-01-A02 International Institute of New England, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgned by;

6/1/2021

Date Name; Catherine Pmos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-01-A02 International Institute of New England, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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ExMbK B-9 Amandmtnt <2 SFY 2022 Bu<>9*i

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

CeMtader Nanw: Intamalional Instllula of How Enelond, Inc.

Budeot Roeuost for Roooplloo and PlacomonI Sorvkoa

Budeat Poriod: SPY 2022

Lino Rom

Total Program Coot Conlroctor Sharo I Match f undod by DHHS cow act ahara

1. Total SataryfWaooa

2- Emplovoe Baoofta

3. ConauKants

4. EqUtonont:

Rooair and Majnlenaneo

PuretMwWOapfodation

S. Suppliea:

Lab

Phannacv

OfTica

7. Ocoatanev

8. Cunant Ejtpanaaa

Tatephooa

Poalaga

Sobacripllona

Auda and Looal

Boanl Eaoonaoa

Softwara

10. Markatino/Conimunieaeooa

11. Staff Eduealioo and Traininq •

12. St)bcontrac»afAQiaoni(iraa

13. Othe«l«t>ocifiedotad»niBodnlo«v):

Indiraet Aa A Porcont of Diroct

Inlomattonal Instilula of Haw England, Inc.
SS-2015-OHe-01-RECEP-02-AI>2

Exhibtl B-11 Amandmenl «2 SPY 2022 Budget
Paga l of 1

Jt
Contractor Wttata^

5/25/2021
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Exhtbtl B-10 Am*ndm«Rt 12 SPY 2023 Budgal

Nsw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nam*: ln(*mallonal insillul* o( N*w England, Inc.

Budgvl R*<|u**l for R*c*pUon and PUevnwnl S*ivie*«

Budgat Period; SPY 2023

Pund*d by DHHS contract ahar*

Lina Item

Total Program Coat Contractor Shar* / Match

1. TctM SMaryftVaqea

2. Emplovaa Banafta

3. ConaUtBfta

*■ EouipmanL
Rental
Repaa and Maintenanea
PurcheaalPapraciatlon

S. SupQliea:

PtwinacY

8. Travel
7. OcoipancY
8;_^«*rerl_0i£e»g^^

Telephene
Poataaa
Sut>*crtptiona
Audit and Legal

Board Expenaaa
9. Software
10. Marliatino/Commurtoticna
11. Staff education and TraininQ
12, SubeoftraelafAqraaiiiema
13. Othetjapaoficdetalaniandalorvl:

Indlract A* A Percent of Diraci

International Instiuta of New England, Inc.
SS-2015-OHE-01-RECEP-Q2-A02
Exhibit B-11 AmendrTMra «2 SPY 2023 Budget
Page l of l

pr
Contractor Iniliay

_5/25/2021
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Exhibit &>11 Amandmant *2 SFY 2024 Budgat

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nama: Intamatlonal biaillula o( Haw EnQiand, Inc.

Btidgat Raquaal for Racaptloo and Plaeamatrt Sarvleat

Budgat Parted: SFV 2024

LIna Bam

Total Proflfam Coat

indiract

Contractor Shara I Match Fundad bv OHHS contract ahara

1. Total SatarYlWaqaa

2. Emplovaa Banafaa

3. Conatitart*

4. Equepmanc

Rwlal

Repair and MairttertarKa

Purehoaa/Dapradatlen

5. Suppliaa:

Ptiarmacv

6. Tiaval

7, Oeoipancv

6. Ctitreni Expenaaa

_Talegfpo^
Poataqa

Subaeriptlona

AuWartd Laoal

Inauranca

Board Expaneea

8. Software

10. Martietino/Coovntaiacatiorta

It. Staff Erhrciaronand Trainaiq

12. S<ibco<4iaaa/Aoraamanti

13. Ottwfapecifiedetala mandatory):

Indirect Aa A Percent of Olract

IntamaUonal InsUtula of New England. Inc.
SS-2015-OHe-01-R£CePJD2-Aa2

Exhlbll B-11 Amandmara #2 SFY 2024 Budget
Page t of l

Jt
ContraOix Ifitlla

5/25/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrclar%' of Slate of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE

OE NEW ENGLAND, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonproi'ii Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

l-ebruar)' 12, 2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 739194

Certificate Number: 0005365826

4^

fi&i

O

*8^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 11th day of May A.D. 2021.

w.

William M. Gardner

Sccretarv of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Deborah Shufrin . hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officer of International Institute of New England.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1,2015, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeffrey Thielman. President & CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of international Institute of New Enoland to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in^ontracts with, the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 'SI^O I _
Signature orElect^d Of.
Name: tieUi/vTvK

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Page 1 of 1

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

05/26/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Willia Towara Hatson Northaaat, Inc.

c/o 26 Cantury Blvd

P.O. Box 305191

Nashvilla, TN 372305191 USA

N^E^^^ Willia Towera Wataon Cartificata Cantar
1-877-945-7378 1-888-467-2378

cartificataaSwillls. com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICm

INSURER A Philadalphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058

INSURED

Intarnatlonal Inatituta of Haw England, Inc.

2 Boylaton Straat, Sta. 3

Boston, MA 02116

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: W21045030 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
INfil?

SU8R
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
fMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
/MM/DD/YYYY1 LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

5 OCCUR
Y PKPK2270202 05/05/2021 05/05/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE $  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE |
DAMAGE TO KEN 1 ED
PREMISES (Ea ocnurrenrnl

$  100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $  5,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY $  1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE S  3,000,000

POLICY 1 ^5eC-F 1 ^LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG S  3,000,000

$

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

1

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa acddentl

s

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED 1
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

NC N-OWNED
TOS ONLY

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidentl

.$

$

A
X UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE
PHUB766723 05/05/2021 05/05/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE {  5,000,000

EXCESS LIAB AGGREGATE S  5,000,000

DED i ^ RETENTIONS 10,000 s

WORKERSCOMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y,
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes. des^be under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE s

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarks Schedule, may be attached 1/more space Is required)

Named Insured includes International Institute of New Haii^shire, Inc. and International Institute of Lowell, Inc.

NH Department of Health £ Human Services 129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building Concord, NH 03301 are included as

Additional Insureds as respects to General Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampahire

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
SR ID: 21140314 BATCH; 2108008
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^  ̂ INTEINS-05

^COKD- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
PCONDQN

OATB (MM/OOmmr)

9/23/2020

THIS CGRTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER^OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CON-mACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is on ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this cariincato does not confer rlohts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(8).

PROOUCER License # 1780862
HUB international New England
600 Longwatar Drive
Norwell.MA 02061-9146

TaJcho.6«i; (781) 792-3200 ho»:(7B1 ) 792-3400

INMIRPRfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC n ■

INSURER A' Travoiors Property Casualty Company of America 25674

IHSURED

international Institute Of New England, Inc.
2 Boylston Street, 3rd floor
Boston, MA 02116

INSIIRFR B :

INSURER C:

IHSIIRRR D ;

INSURERS;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. ■

INSR
Ufi.

GEt^AGG

POLICY

TYPE Of INSURANCE
ADOL
INS[>

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIA8IUTY

OCCURI CLAIMS-MAOE

TE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

gf .Plioc
gTH^R:

AUTOMoeiLE LuenjTY

ANYAUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAO

EXCESS LIAO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

5!8Pom?

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If VPS. dMC/ttt un4«r
pfesCRtPTiON OF OPERaTONS Blew

lilt

SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

6JUB997SL6S420 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMACE TO RENTED
PRFMlSPfi fF«

mED EXP (Am ooa pyteni

PERSONAL I ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PROOUCTS ■ COMPOP AGO

COMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT
fEi tcMtnxi

BOOILY INJURY IPw oaraoni

BODILY INJURY (Py <eeWpA»

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPf iaddenll

EACH OCCURRENCE

aggregate

X i!'ATUTE
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

e.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E L DISEASE ■ PQLCY LIMIT

500,000

500,000

500,000

DESCRIPTlONOFCPERATICNSf LOCATIONS f VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AMI(Jon«l RamarLt SchMvl*. m*y t>« •tttchtO If m»r*«pic«lt r«quk«0)
Now Hampshire Workers Compensation policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Stato of NH

Doportmont of Health and Human Sorvicos
129 Pleasant Stroot

Concord, NK 03301-3657

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WHH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ©1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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International

Institute of

New England

Mission Statement

The mission of the International Institute of New England is to create opportunities for refugees and

immigrants to succeed through resettlement, education, career advancement, and pathways to

citizenship.
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International
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NEW AMERICANS

Financial Statements

September 30,2020 and 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.
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A/Hx MFCPAs
great minds \ great hearts aafcpa.com

50 Washington Street
Westborough, MA 01581
508.366.9100

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
{a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this Includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's,
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Boston, Massachusetts
March 25, 2021

Page 1

a
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019

Current Assets;

Cash $ 906,611 S 303,109

Short-term investments 400,000 600,000

Government contracts and contributions receivable 723,511 898,459

Accounts receivable 54,101 41,620

Prepaid expenses and other 17,744 75,131

Total current assets 2,101,967 1,918,319

Investments 6,772,529 6,389,743

Property and Equipment, net 1,588,536 1,728,194

Security Deposits 100,434 100,434

Total assets $ 10,563,466 $ 10,136,690

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable S 59,503 $. 66,190

Accrued expenses 347,866 372,088

Current portion of lease incentive 110,782 110,782

Conditional advances 57,924 84,864

Total current liabilities 576,075 633,924

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion 751,328 857,417

Total liabilities - 1,327,403 1,491,341

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Operating 7,968,322 7,535,501

Property and equipment 942,314 971,188

Total without donor restrictions 8,910,636 8,506,689

With donor restrictions 325,427 138,660

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

9,236,063 8,645,349

$ 10,563,466 $ 10,136,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGUND, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):

Investment return

Capital grants and contracts

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Changes in net assets

Net Assets:

Beginning of year

End of year

382,836

35,832

(42,514)

150,000

382,836

185,832

(42,514)

352,632

(9,029)
376,154 150,000 526,154 343,603

403,947

8,506,689

186,767

138,660

590,714

8,645,349

(537,296)

9,043,985

24,714

113,946

2020 2019

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues:

Government contracts $ 3,965,017 $ $ 3,965,017 $ 3,694,803 $ $ 3,694,803
Grants and contributions 1,688,987 675,977 2,364,964 1,779,756 392,684 2,172,440
Donated goods and services 560,288 - 560,288 1,062,113 - 1,062,113
Program service fees 229,059 - 229,059 231,069 - 231,069
Contracted services 159,183 - 159,183 131,921 - 131,921
United Way allocation 58,800 - 58,800 60,000 - 60,000
Net assets released from program restrictions 639,210 (639,210) - 367,970 (367,970) -

Total revenues 7,300,544 36,767 7,337,311 7,327,632 24,714 7,352,346

Expenses:

Program services 4,921,123 - 4,921,123 5,777,290 . 5,777,290
General and administrative 1,515,827 - 1,515,827 1,351,264 . - 1,351,264
Fundraising 835,801 - 835,801 1,079,977 - 1,079,977

Total expenses 7,272,751 - 7,272,751 8,208,531 - 8,208,531

.  Changes in net assets from operations 27,793 36,767 64,560 (880,899) 24,714 (856,185)

352,632

(9,029)

343,603

(512,582)

9,157,931

$ 8,910,636 $ 325,427 $ 9,236,063 $ 8,506,689 S 138,660 $ 8,645,349

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E^AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Capital grants and contracts

Investment return

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of lease incentive

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

•  Government contracts and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses and other

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Conditional advances

Deferred rent

$  590,714 $ (512,582)

(185,832)

(382,836)

42,514

299,534

(110,784)

(12,481)

310,780

57,387

(6,687)

(24,222)

(26,940)

4,695

(352,632)

9,029

282,936

(110,784)

(41,620),

(185,256)

38,760

22,261

45,202

24,061

16,944

Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities 555,842 (763,681)

Cash Plows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments

Acquisition of property and equipment

Investment purchases

200,050 775,050

(202,390) (124,735)

(16,412)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,340) 633,903

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Capital grants and contracts 50,000

Net Change in Cash 603,502 (129,778)

Cash:

Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions;
Unrealized gain on investments

303,109 432,887

$  906,611 $ 303,109

$  83,056 $ 156,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-809E-4AAB-A76e-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2019)

2020 2019

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundraising Total Total

Personnel and Related;

Salaries • $ 2,572,879 $  867,535 S 410,616 S 3,851,030 $ 3,744,694
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 483,114 151,974 78,362 713,450 713,122

Donated services 513,454 - - 513,454 913,115

Purchased and contracted services 78,949 116,003 33,859 228,811 259,052

Staff training 2,330 1,827 575 4,732 13,311

. Recruitment 846 774 1,944 3,564 3,880

Total personnel and related 3,651,572 1,138,113 525,356 5,315,041 5,647,174

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 427,811 67,662 37,686 533,159 522,158
Depreciation 152,337 34,530 16,249 203,116 201,858

Equipment rental 13,362 1,047 925 15,334 18,141

Repairs and maintenance 1,749 788 - 2,537 16,460

Total occupancy 595,259 104,027 54,860 754,146 758,617

Other:

Client assistance 361,974 - - 361,974 717,364

Special events - - 220,806 220,806 295,880

Professional fees - 109,586 1,125 110,711 98,348

Depreciation 72,510 16,257 7,651 96,418 81,078

Service charges 10,480 51,510 14,124 76,114 74,012

Supplies and materials , 49,692 12,594 398 62,684 79,849

Telephone 52,321 7,375 1,944 61,640 72,439

Travel, meetings and conferences 25,337 22,075 1,088 48,500 76,242

Donated goods 46,834 • - 46,834 148,998

Insurance 12,639 33,859 - 46,498 52,765

Dues and subscriptions 11,387 10,861 4,048 26,296 36,022

Printing 6,060 5,331 2,223 13,614 23,771

Storage 10,304 277 - 10,581 9,995

Postage 6,683 1,303 2,078 10,064 12,912

Advertising 7,037 - 100 7,137 17,090

Miscellaneous ■ 1,034 2,659 - 3,693 5,975

Total other 674,292 273,687 255,585 1,203,564 1,802,740

Total expenses S 4,921,123 $ 1,515,827 S 835,801 $ 7,272,751 S 8,208,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundraising Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries $ 2,492,807 $  736,209 S  515,678 S 3>744,694

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 470,743 144,123 98,256 713,122

Donated services 913,115 - - 913,115

Purchased and contracted services 120,332 122,337 16,383 259,052

Staff training 3,567 4,595 5,149 13,311

Recruitment 1,566 2,314 - 3,880

Total personnel and related 4,002,130 1,009,578 635,466 5,647,174

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 417,070 50,445 54,643 522,158

Depreciation 151,394 34,316 16,148 201,858

Equipment rental 16,393 968 780 18,141

Repairs and maintenance 9,561 6,899 - 16,460

Total occupancy 594,418 92,628 71,571 758,617

Other:

Client assistance 717,364 - - 717,364

Special events - - 295,880 295,880

Professional fees - 98,348 - 98,348

Depreciation 63,141 9,340 8,597 81,078

Service charges 7,305 51,894 14,813 74,012

Supplies and materials 68,263 9,168 2,418 79,849

Telephone 64,461 3,366 4,612 72,439

Travel, meetings and conferences 41,013 22,603 12,626 76,242

Donated goods 148,998 - - 148,998

Insurance 17,079 35,686 - 52,765

Dues and subscriptions 9,780 14,555 11,687 36,022

Printing 8,587 117 15,067 23,771

Storage 9,661 334 - 9,995

Postage 4,872 1,841 6,199 12,912

Advertising 16,049 - 1,041 17,090

Miscellaneous 4,169 1,806 - 5,975

Total other 1,180,742 249,058 372,940 . 1,802,740

Total expenses $ 5,777,290 $ 1,351,264 $ 1,079,977 $ 8,208,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of New England, Inc. (the Institute) is a nonprofit organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2020 and 2019, there were approximately 2,500 unduplicated people,
from approximately 100 countries that benefited from the Institute's services, gaining the
knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into American life. The Institute's services
include English and literacy classes, citizenship education, job training and placement, legal aid
and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Institute prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

The Institute adopted FASB's. Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers {Topic 606), with respect to its revenue recognition policies. The core
principle of the new accounting guidance Is that an entity should recognize revenue when it
transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. As a result of
the adoption of Topic 606, disclosures related to revenue recognition have been enhanced. The
Institute adopted ASU No. 2014-09 using a modified retrospective method applied tp those
contracts which were not completed as of October 1, 2019. There was no cumulative-effect
adjustment to opening net assets as of October 1, 2019. The adoption of this ASU did not have
a material impact on the accompanying financial statements.

The Institute also adopted FASB's ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying
the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.
This ASU clarifies and improves guidance for contributions received and contributions made and
provides guidance to organizations on how to account for certain exchange transactions. In
addition, it clarifies whether a contribution is conditional. As a result, it enhances comparability
of financial information among not-for-profit entities. The Institute adopted ASU No. 2018-08
using a modified prospective method effective October 1, 2019. Under the modified
prospective method, this ASU only applies to agreements not completed or entered into
(revenue or expense that has not yet been recognized) as of October 1, 2019. As a result, the
fiscal year 2019 financial statements are not restated and there was no cumulative-effect
adjustment to opening net assets as of October 1, 2019.

Page 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed .by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets. Non-operating revenue (expense) includes investment and
property and equipment related activity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of
lease or 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2020 or 2019.

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash, except those funds that
are included in the Institute's investments (see Note 4).

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources Independent of the Institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial instrument, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable.

Page 8



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the financial instrument developed based on^ market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting
entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset developed based on the best information available.

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable, and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

■ Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. If an investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
Institute's interest in a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Revenue Recognition

Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions

The Institute's primary sources of revenue are from Federal and state government contracts.
Amounts received under these contracts have been recorded in accordance with ASU Subtopic
958 (see page 10). These contracts are considered nonreciprocal transactions because the
general public receives the benefit as the result of the assets transferred. These conditional
contributions are recognized as services are provided or costs are incurred.

Grants and contributions and United Way allocations are recorded as revenue and net assets
without donor restrictions when unconditionally committed. Grants and contributions with
donor restrictions are recorded as revenues and net assets with donor restrictions when
unconditionally received or pledged. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions as costs are incurred or time or program
restrictions have lapsed.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Ftnancial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions {Continued)

In accordance with Topic 958, the Institute must determine whether a contribution (or a
promise) is conditional or unconditional for transactions deemed to be a contribution. A
contribution is considered to be a conditional contribution if an agreement includes a barrier
that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets or a right of release of a promise to
transfer assets exists (see Note 8). Indicators of a barrier include a measurable performance-
related barrier or other measurable barriers, a stipulation that limits discretion by the recipient
on the conduct of an activity, and stipulations that are related to the purpose of the agreement.
Topic 958 prescribes that the Institute should not consider probability of compliance with the
barrier when determining if such awards are conditional and should be reported as conditional
grant advance liabilities until such conditions are met. Assets received before the barrier Is
overcome are recorded as conditional advances.

A portion of the Institute's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable and unit-rate contracts
(contracts), which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts are recognized as revenue when the
Institute has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract provisions. Amounts
received prior to Incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as conditional advances in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

Special events revenue, included in grants and contributions In the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets, is from the Institute's ability to host fundraising events.
Special event Income.consists of both contributions and sales. The,contribution portion of the
special event income Is recognized as revenue when unconditionally committed or received In
accordance with Topic 958. Special events are considered donor restricted if the proceeds of
the event are restricted for specific purposes or time periods at the time of the event. The sales
portion of the special event income Is recognized in accordance with Topic 606 and is derived
from various components, Including ticket sales from fundraising events held in which the
transaction price is determined annually. Registration fees for these events are set by the
Institute and have not been allocated as the events are each considered to be separate
performance obligations. The fee portion for these events Is Immaterial and have not been
recognized separately from the contribution portion.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606

The.Institute generally measures revenue from exchange transactions based on the amount of
consideration the Institute expects to be entitled for the transfer of goods or services to a
customer, then recognizes this revenue when or as the Institute satisfies Its performance
obligations under a contract. The Institute evaluates Its revenue recognition based on the five-
step model under Topic 606: (1) Identify the contract with the customer; (2) Identify the
performance obligations in the contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate the
transaction price to separate performance obligations; and (5) Recognize revenue when (or as)
each performance obligation is satirfied.

The Institute recognized program service fees for legal and translation services provided for
clients. In which the clients either pay for the services themselves or are sponsored by
corporations depending on the service provided. Program service fees generally consist of a
single performance obligation to provide services, and agreements with clients do not contain
variable consideration. Accordingly, program service fees are recognized at a point In time,
which is also when the performance obligation is satisfied. The transaction price. Is a fixed fee
based upon the service provided, which is established by management based on hourly rates
and expected number of hours to complete the service.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606 (Continued)

Contracted service revenue consists of various training and education service programs
provided to immigrants and refugees that span over several months based on the nature of the
program or course. There is a single performance obligation for all programs, which consists of
the completion of the training and education program or course and related events. Revenue is
recognized ratably over the period of the program or course, and the transaction price is based
on fixed quoted prices. The contract amount may vary based upon the number of participants
in the program and the rate per participant. Generally, a fixed-fee contract is signed by either
an individual participant in the program or an organization sponsoring the individuals. The
transaction price is determined based upon hourly rates established by management and the
number of hours estimated to complete a contract.

Other

)

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
Interest income is recorded as earned and dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are recorded based on the average cost
method. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded based on changes in fair.value. All other
revenue is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are salaries, payroll taxes and fringe benefits, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square
footage basis; and other operating expenses, which are allocated based on management's
estimate of usage.

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when incurred and
are reflected as advertising in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various aspects of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods include food and clothing; and donated services include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2020 2019

Donated services $ 513,454 $ 913,115
Donated goods 46.834 148.998
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 25, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. See Note 7 for an event that met the criteria for
disclosure in the financial statements.

Income Taxes

the Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30, 2020 or 2019. The Institute's information returns are subject to
examination by the Federal and state jurisdictions.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating - represents funds available to carry on the operations of the institute.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute's
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods. These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse.

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following at September 30:

2020 2019

Purpose restricted $ 175,427 $ 138,660
Capital restricted . 150,000

S 325.427
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately Into the
plan upon eligibility. The Institute made $60,174 and $74,120 of matching contributions to the
plan during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are included in
payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows:

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 1,200,058 $ - $ - $ 1,200,058
Mutual funds:

Equities
Fixed income

3,621,534
1.019.733

- - 3,621,534
1.019.733

$ 5.841.MS $ s 5,841,325

Limited liability partnership (see below) 1.331.204

Total investments 5 7.172.529

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Equities
Fixed income

$  45,216

4,431,162
1,244.737

$ $ $  45,216

4,431,162
1.244.737

5 5.721.115 S $ 5,721,115

Limited liability partnership (see below) 1.268.628

Total investments S 6.989.743

In accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, the Institute's investment in a limited liability partnership
Is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient and has not
been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the above tables
are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented In the
statements of financial position (see Note 2).

Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management's intent with respect to the use of the investments. At
September 30, 2020 and 2019, $400,000 and $600,000, respectively, were reported as current
Investments as management's intent Is to use these funds for operations in the subsequent
year.

The investments are not insured and are subject to market fluctuation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains its cash balances with two banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The Institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FDIC's limit. The
Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the Institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or government contracts, contributions and accounts
receivables as of and for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

Operating
Revenue

Funder

Government

Contracts,
Contributions

and Accounts

Receivables %

2020 2019 2020 2019

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 21% 18% 37% 20%

U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants 14% 17% 20% 19%

State of New Hampshire 9% 7% 18% 6%

Private donor 1% -% 14% -%

FUNDING

The Institute receives a significant portion of its funding from government agencies, all of which
are subject to audit by the specific government agency. These contracts are subject to audit by
these government agencies. In the opinion of management, the results of such audits, if any,
will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Institute as of September 30, 2020
and 2019, or on the changes in its net assets for the years then ended.

LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 were
approximately $42,000 and $41,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given year is
recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation amounts and
an initial three-month rent-free period. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, deferred rent was
$215,888 and $211,193, respectively, and is included in deferred rent and lease incentive.in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

The lease agreement also included a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form
of a reimbursement for construction and related costs incurred by the Institute for leasehold
improvements. This improvement allowance is reported as a liability and is being amortized
over the lease term. The improvement allowance is included in deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,782 during each of the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, and is
netted with rent and utilities in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-wi)l agreements. These leases expire at various dates through January 2023. The
leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses.

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $514,000 and $500,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is included in rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

In February 2021, the Institute entered into an operating lease agreement for program space in
Lowell, Massachusetts. The lease will commence on July 1, 2021, with monthly payments of
$6,756 through June 30, 2031. Rent increases annually based on the Consumer Price Index,
which is limited to a maximum annual increase of 3%. There are extension options for two
additional five-year periods.

The Institute also has a copier lease with monthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements for the next five fiscal years are as
follows:

2021 $ 6i7,014
2022 $ 587,850
2023 $ 557,880
2024 $ 553,247
2025 $ 565,496
Thereafter, $ 479,753

8. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

Conditional Government Contracts

During fiscal year 2020, the Institute received grants and contributions (including government
contracts) that contained donor-imposed conditions that represent a barrier that must be
overcome as well as a right of return of assets or release from obligations. The Institute
recognizes these grants and contributions, including government contracts, when donor-
imposed conditions are substantially met (see Note 2).

Conditional promises to give at September 30, 2020, consist of:

Subject to measurable performance barriers $ 629,471
Incurring qualifying expenses 557.306

Total conditional promises to give

Page 15
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

8. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS (Continued)

Paycheck Protection Program Loan

The Institute applied for and was awarded a loan of $884,501 from the Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act).
The funds were used to pay certain payroll costs, including benefits during a covered period as
defined in the CARES Act. A portion of these funds may be forgiven, as defined in the
agreement, at the end of the covered period and the remainder of the funds will be due over a
two-year period with interest at 1%. Any repayment will be deferred for a period of ten months
from the end of the covered period, when the note, plus interest, will be due in equal monthly
payments over a two-year period. The forgiveness calculations are subject to review and
approval by the lending bank and the Small Business Administration (SBA).

The Institute believes there is less than a remote chance this loan will not be forgiven and,
therefore, is accounting for it as a conditional grant under ASC Subtopic 958-605. This grant is
conditional upon certain performance requirements and the incurrence of eligible expenses.
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Institute has incurred expenditures in
compliance with the loan application and CARES Act requirements. As of September 30, 2020,
the Institute recognized the full PPP loan amount of $884,501 as grant revenue, which is
included in government contracts in the accompanying 2020 statement of activities and changes
in net assets.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Institute's President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Is also a rriember of the Board of
Directors. Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as ,the President and CEO
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on
performance objectives.

The Institute's Chief Financial Officer is also the Institute's Treasurer.

10. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial
position date for general operating expenses are as follows at September 30:

2020 2019

Cash

Short-term investments

Government contracts and contributions receivables
Accounts receivable

Less - donor restricted cash and contributions receivable

$  906,611 $  303,109
400,000 600,000
723,511 898,459
54.101 41,620

2,084,223 1,843,188
325,427 138.660

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available
within one year S 1.758.796

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and government contracts. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and
other obligations come due.

Page 16
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30:

2020 2019

Leasehold improvements $ 1,955,962 $ 1,928.778
Furniture and equipment 679,676 589,571
Vehicles 23.064

2,635,638 2,541,413

Less - accumulated depreciation 1.047.102 813.219

Net property and equipment 5 1.588.536 5 1.728.194

Depreciation expense was $299,534 andv$282,936 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

12. CONTINGENCY

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption and a reduction in
economic activity. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration. While the Institute expects this matter to
negatively impact its operating results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

13. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the fiscal year 2019 financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the fiscal year 2020 presentation.

Page 17



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

International Institute of New England

Board of Directors and Affiliations

Name, Board Position Affiliation

Zoltan Csimma, Chair

Senior VP and Chief Human Resources Officer,

Sanofi - Genzyme (Ret.)

Christina Bai Founder, CollegeFindMe

Tara Chynoweth
Senior Environmental, Health and Safety

Specialist, Hologic, Inc.

Sam Epee-Bounya
Fixed Income Credit Analyst, Wellington

Management

Ginger L. Gregory, Ph.D. EVP & Chief Human Resources Officer, Biogen

Tuan Ha-Ngoc President and CEO, AVEO Pharmaceuticals (Ret.)

Avak Kahvejian, Ph.D. Paltrier, Flagship Pioneering

William Krause Investment Advisor at Ballentine Partners, LLC

Shari Loessberg
Senior Lecturer, MIT Sloan School of

Management

Thee Melas-Kyriazi CFO, Levitronix LLC

Dr. Frederick Millham Chief of Surgery, South Shore Hospital

Bopha Malone Vice President, Enterprise Bank

Deborah Shufrin Director of Investments, Brandeis University

Nia Tatsis Chief Regulatory Officer, Vertex Pharmaceuticals

Jeffrey Thielman, President

and CEO

President and CEO, International Institute of New

England
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^ 603-496-6028

HENRY HARRIS, MSW ® hhamsMS^Rmall.com
in www.linkedin.com/in/henrvharrismsw

Dedicated professional serving youth, families and communities in need through program development and
operations, clinical counseling and supervision, K-12 afterschool programming and community partnerships.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, Manchester, NH 2021-Present

Managing Director

Provide site leadership and data-driven/outcome focused program management for one of the largest human
services organizations for New Americans In the region, including case management, youth and family services,
English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL), employment and skills training, and immigration legal services.

•  Manage the planning, development, implementation, ongoing modifications and grant compliance of all
programs, including policy setting, regular assessments, data collection and reporting

•  Monitor and document program effectiveness and outcomes to reflect contractual obligations and ensure

responsiveness to client needs in alignment with IINEs mission and goals
•  Partner with the Chief Program Officer and Chief Institutional Advancement Office to achieve translation and

interpreting revenue targets, as well as develop new programming in the areas of education, employment,
skills training, community services, and citizenship that are financially sustainable

•  Build and maintain relationships and partnerships with community-based and student-serving organizations

•  Manage program and expense allocations across all contracts and grants, ensuring accuracy and accountability
•  Draft annual site budget in concert with the Finance Department, Chief Program Officer and Chief Institutional

Advancement Officer

•  Recruit, supervise and evaluate staff at the New Hampshire site, including program interns and volunteers
•  Provide professional development opportunities that align with staff and program needs, contractual

regulations, and emerging trends in the community
•  Identify client and program stories that can be highlighted in marketing communications materials
•  " Maintain relationships with community leaders, funders, employer partners and stakeholders
•  Collaborate regularly with IINE Development, Institutional Advancement and Marketing staff

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, Manchester, NH 2013-2021

Client Services and Conimunity Outreach Director

Leadership role managing agency programs and coordinating with government officials and local businesses in
the areas of health, nutrition, housing, employment assistance and crisis response.

•  Oversaw clinical supervision for Mary's House, a subsidized single-room apartment complex for
homeless women in need of a safe and supportive living environment

•  Managed the summer food program, including site selection, operations, marketing and meal delivery
Foster community partnerships, including a $25K donation from Hannaford Charitable Foundation

•  Collaborated on submissions, compliance, reporting and evaluation for the Community Services Block
Grant program Develop referral networks and support client participants in the YouthBuild vocational
education and training program Present regular updates, feedback and recommendations to the
executive leadership team and board of directors

•  Created and implemented a crisis helpline referring clients to services during the COVID-19 pandemic,
resulting in over 5K inquiries and distribution of over $1M in rent, mortgage and utilities assistance to
protect clients from eviction
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ANNIEE. CASEY FOUNDATION, Concord, NH 2003-2013

Franklin Resource Center Program Director

Directed the Franklin Celebrates program, providing afterschool and summer programming opportunities for

at-risk middle and high school students and their families in Franklin, NH.

•  Managed outdoor recreational and academic offerings designed to engage students and foster

independence while providing advocacy and support

•  Recruited and motivated a staff of teachers, tutors and volunteers

•  Led 21st Century Grant curriculum development and managed operations and funding goals

•  Engaged.difficult-to-reach students via adventure-based activities that also met state physical

education requirements Consulted on the Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports team

•  Presented at conferences and collaborated with partner agencies, SAU officials and area healthcare

professionals to improve program quality

Casey Family Services Family Support Specialist

Managed a caseload of foster children and families, including clinical assessment, documentation, counseling,

in-home therapy, court advocacy, family strengthening programs, rehabilitation and resource referrals.

•  Recruited foster families and provided and training and reunification support

•  Piloted an aversion program with court-appointed foster children utilizing Trauma Focused Cognitive

Behavioral Therapy and anger management techniques

•  Counseled clients on Individual Service Options; Home.-Based Therapy, Accelerated Unification Model,

Play Therapy and 3-5-7 Therapeutic Techniques

THE COUNSELING CENTER OF NASHUA, Nashua, NH 2001 - 2003

Neuropsychological Technician

•  Assessed clients of all ages via neuropsychological tests and observations fpr developmental and
cognitive disorders

•  Collaborated and shared clinical observations and diagnostic recommendations with reporting and

feedback sessions

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work, University of.New Hampshire, 2014

Clinical internship at the Payson Center for Cancer, Concord, NH

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Rivier College, 2002, Academic Honors

CERTIFICATIONS

NH DHHS Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team (2010-2020)

NAMI Suicide Prevention Trainer (2014)

Junior Achievement Volunteer Collaborator of the Year (2006)

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP

Chair of the Board of Directors, The Well School - an independent pre-K through 8^*^ grade day school in
Peterborough, NH (2018-Present)
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Jackson Efuta

Work Experience
Case Specialist, International Institute of New

England Manchester, NH July 2019 - present
•  Provide case management support to the Program Staff at the Manchester. NH office.
• Meet regularly with newly-arrived refugees to assist them with learning how to pay rent, go to

DHHS, going to doctor's appointments, paying bills, and any other needs they have to
become self-sufficient.

•  Interpret between English, Swahili, and Kinyarwanda.

Team Lead -Truck Loader,

Cintas Manchester, NH .April 2019 - Jan 2020
•  Promoted to yard team lead within four months due to high quality work
•  Supervise six truck unloaders and three truck loaders between two locations.
•  Ensure trucks are loaded and unloaded correctly and all keys are kept in their proper place.

Truck Loader,

Cintas Manchester, NH January 2019-April 2019
• Carefully loaded trucks with mats, bo.xes, and garments

•  Followed all safety regulations as mandated by the company
•  Ensured trucks were operating efficiently and reported any problems to the supervisor.

Taxi Driver, Self-

Employed Uganda 2015-2017
•  Created own ta.xi driving business to meet the demands oflocal community.
• • Drove people to and from their-desired locations.

•  Provided strong customer service to clients

Farmer, Self-

Empioyed Uganda 2009-2015
•  Grew maize and beans for the family farm.

•  Led a team of nine people to reach farm production goals.
•  Sold harvest at the local market

Education
High School Diploma, Bujubuli Secondary School, Uganda •
201 1-2014

Skills
Flexible, dependable, punctual, positive, good interpersonal skills, hardworking, motivated,
detail-oriented

Language Proficiency
English (advanced), Swahili (fluent), Kinyarwanda (fluent), Kirundi (advanced)

References
Megan Clark, Programs Manager, International Institute of NE (603) 647-1500
mclark@iine.org.
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MEGAN CLARK

/

EDUCATION

Master of Applied Science, Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health Expected May 2021
Humanitarian Health

Bachelor of Science, University of New Hampshire May 2017
Major: Social Work; Minors: Psychology, justice Studies

WORK EXPERIENCE
International Institute of New England, Manchester NH June 2020 - Present
Community Services Manager

•  Recruit and supervise staff, interns, and volunteers on community services team
•  Offer immediate support to vulnerable refugee and immigrant families experiencing crisis
•  Maintain strong partnerships with grantors, community organizations, and local government
•  Ensure compliance with program contracts and complete reports for funders
•  Manage all community services programming and supervise client-related expenditures

International Institute of New England, Manchester NH October 2017 - June 2020
Case Specialist, Preferred Communities
•  Provided vulnerable refugee and immigrant families with comprehensive case management

services to promote self-sufficiency and successful integration into their communities
•  Conducted regular home visits with clients facing significant barriers to self-sufficiency
•  Assessed clients experiencing mental health crisis and facilitated referrals as needed
•  Outreached to community partner agencies to provide education about resettlement
•  Developed therapeutic and educational group programming for vulnerable refugee women in

collaboration with local healthcare providers and domestic violence crisis centers

International Institute of New England, Manchester NH June 2017 - October 2017
Case Specialist, Employment Services

•  Conducted intakes with newly arrived refugee clients to discuss career goals, identify appropriate
opportunities, and create individualized employment plans

•  Assisted clients in achieving employment goals through resume creation, application assistance,
interview preparation, job skills training, and post-employment support

•  Built and maintained strong working relationships with employers and community partners

The Chase Home for Children, Portsmouth NH August 2016 - October 2017
Residential Counselor

•  Provided direct supervision and support to adolescents living in the residential facility.

•  Enforced program expectations to maintain a safe, nurturing environment

•  Developed therapeutic, educational, social, and employment-based programming for residents

•  Provided individual counsel to residents facing difficult or crisis situations

UNH Office of Institutional Research and Assessment, Durham NH September 2013 - July 2016
Lead Institutional Research Assistant

•  Trained, scheduled, and supervised the team of three to five student employees each semester

•  Collaborated with supervisors ondata visualization projects using MS Office and Tableau
•  Analyzed trends and created data visualizations using sensitive university data

LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE
University of New Hampshire, Social Work Department September 2018 - Present
Advisory Council Member & Guest Lecturer
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Jean Noel Mugabe

A multilingual, professional communicator and journalist with special emphasis on African and western

politics, history, culture, and society. Committed to voice the voiceless.

SKILLS

♦ Writing for the web, - Communication strategy drafting

- Writing for print - Strong communication skills

- Radio hosting - Multilingual (independently use of English, French,

Kiswahili & Kinyarwanda).

- Radio production

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

International Institute of New England, New Hampshire US May 2021 - Present

Case specialist: Assisting refugees and immigrants to navigate various resettlement processes from the

arrival in the US to the self-sufficiency in their new home country. To report to the Community service

manager and any other activities assigned by the supervisors.

Amazon, Sewickley, Pennsylvania US Nov 2019 - Feb 2021

Associate

GIZ, Kigali/Rwanda March 2014

Lead Editor of the bi-annual conference of the GIZ Sector Network Good Governance in Sub-Sahara

Africa (GGA) hosting over 200 participants from more than 30 countries worldwide.

Kigali Today Ltd, Kigali / Rwanda Nov 2011 - August 2019

Web Editor, Reporter, Head of Programs

Led web content, oversaw a team of more than 40 reporters, and reported on and edited content.

EDUCATION AND QUALIFICATIONS

Harvard University: Online trainings through HARVARDX Program 2020

Rhetoric: The Art of Persuasive Writing and Public Speaking

Explored introduction to rhetoric, introduction to Oratory; presidential rhetoric,

rhetoric elements and devices, extremist rhetoric, modes of appeal and logical

of reasoning and so on. Certificate of Achievement
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National University of Rwanda, Huye, 2008-2011

Bachelor of Arts in Journalism and Communication

Explored media studies, broadcast skills, public relation and advertising, communication strategies and so

on.

Key areas of focus

Scientific Research,

Writing for the media.

Media and society.

Audio and Video reporting,

Communication and advertising.



International institute of New England

Key Personnel

Name Job Title

Henry Harris Managing Director

Jackson Efuta Case Specialist

Megan Clark Community Ser\'ices Manager

Jean Noel Mugabe Case Specialist



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB IW24'18 «110!12 DflS

JcITrcy A. Meyers
Commissioner

Trinidad L. Tellez, MD
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER
I

OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY

97 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
'  603-271-3986 1-800-852-3345 Ext 3986

Fax: 603-271-0824 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov/omh

1\/

May 7. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity, to
amend existing sole source agreements with the vendors identified below, for the provision of
health care coordination reception and placement services that will ensure all newly arriving
refugees to the State of New Hampshire complete the requirements of the US Domestic
Medical Examination, by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $645,012 to
$1,005,012 and by .extending the completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original contracts were
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on May 6, 2015 (Item #12). 100% Federal
Funds.

Vendor
Vendor

Number
Location

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201-

B001

261 Sheep Davis
Road Suite A-1

Concord NH 03301

$322,506 $180,000 $502,506

International

Institute of

■ New England,
Inc. (f/k/a

International

Institute of

Boston, Inc.)

177551-

B001

2 Boylston Street, 3rd
Floor, Boston, MA

.  02116

$322,506 $180,000 $502,506

Total: $645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Funds to support this agreement are available in the following account for State, Fiscal
Years 2018 and 2019 and are anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office,
without further approval from Governor and Executive Council, If needed and justified.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

010-042-79220000-500731-42200010

HEALTH REFUGEE SERVICES

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: MINORITY

SPY Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $45,954 ■  $0 $45,954

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 , $199,686

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $199,686 $0 $199,686

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $0 $120,000 $120,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 .  $0 $120,000 $120,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200010 $0 $.120,000 $120,000

Total: $645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Department was required to name the two (2)
vendors who will provide reception and placement services when applying for federal funding
to support New Hampshire's Refugee Resettlement Program, as approved by the Office of
Refugee Resettlement.

Intemational Institute of New England, Inc. was formerly known as the International
Institute of Boston, Inc. when this contract was originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council. There was a name change completed in 2016 with no change to staffing or
services.

The vendors must ensure the refugees receiving resettlement and placement services
have the ability to successfully complete all components of the US Domestic Medical
Examination within ninety (90) days of first arriving to the United States. If the initial US
Domestic Medical Examination reveals the need for specialty care, dental services, or mental
health services, the vendors must assist new arrivals with obtaining any needed referrals and
follow-up care that is necessary.

Pursuant to Section 412 (c) (6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 USC1522
(c) (6), states are required to provide resettlement and placement services to all refugees
entering the United States. Ascentria, Inc. and the International Institute of New England, Inc.
both provide resettlement and placement services for the federal government directly.
However, those services provided to refugees through their federal agreements do not include
services related to completing the US Domestic Medical Examination.

The Department named these two (2) vendors in the State of New Hampshire's 2018
State Plan for the Refugee Resettlement to ensure each refugee can experience continuity of
services by having one liaison who can coordinate timely completion of the US Domestic
Medical Examination, which may include multiple appointments and providers. By entering
into amendments of existing contracts with the two (2) vendors who resettle the refugees and
already provide most of the reception and placement services, the Department is ensuring
continuity of services to individuals who may not understand the health screening component
of the resettlement process, and who otherwise may not be accessible to other organizations.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Health care coordination reception and placement services include the assignment of
health care case coordinators, also known as liaisons, who are responsible for ensuring that
refugees understand the importance of each appointment and how to access available
transportation services. They also coordinate appropriate language assistance for each
appointment, as well as referrals and follow-up care for any complex medical conditions, acute
mental health and dental issues identified during the initial US Domestic Medical Examination.

Should Governor and Executive Council not support this request, refugees entering
New Hampshire may not receive the required medical examinations, pursuant to Section 412
which could result in a violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 USC 1522 (c)
(6). Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funding: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA# 93.566, FAIN # 1801NHRCMA.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Trinidad L. Tellez, MD
Director

Approved by:
Je%4y A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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^  Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services

Amendment #1

International Institute of Boston, Inc. (Vendor # 177551-8001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program

Services

42200010 $22,977 $0 $22,977

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

Total $322,506 $180,000 $502,506

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 222201-8001)

SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $22,977 $0 $22,977

2016 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843.

2017 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services
42200010 $99,843 $0 $99,843

2019 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services
42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

42200010 $0 $60,000 $60,000

Total $322,506 $180,000 $502,606

Grand

Total

$645,012 $360,000 $1,005,012

Fiscal Details
Reception and Placement Services
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Reception and Placement Services Contract
This 1" Amendment to.the Reception and Placement Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") dated this 17th day of April, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
International Institute of New England, Inc. (f/k/a International Institute of Boston, Inc.) (hereinafter
referred to as "the Vendor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 2 Boylston Street, 3""
Floor, Boston, MA 02116.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6. 2015 (Item #12). the Vendor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Vendor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$502,506.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Reporting Requirements, Paragraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3 The Vendor shall submit any other de-lderiVified, aggregate data indicators required by
the Office of Refugee Resettlement related to the initial U.S. Domestic Health
Examination, as specified by the State Refugee Health Coordinator.

6. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Delivery of Services, Paragraph 4.2 and replace
as follows:

4.2 The Vendor shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per quarter as described in
Section 2.3.

Ascentria Community Services. Inc Amendment #1
Page 1 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A768-EDE9D102E4EB
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Reception and Placement Services

7. Delete Exhibit B-5, Invoice Sheet, and replaced with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1, Invoice Sheet.

8. Add Exhibit 8-6, SFY19 Budget.

9. Add Exhibit B-7. SFY20 Budget.

,10. Add Exhibit B-8, SFY21 Budget.

11. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Ascentrta Community Services, Inc Amendment
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

c
Name: 7^^^I.

Date

tion

Na

Institute of New England, Inc.

r. Jeffrey Thielman

Title: President and CEO

Acknowledgement of Vendor's signature:

State of County of„ _ on before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

M - AA^
Signature of Notary Public of Justice of the^eace

—M.-
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

RrrAM.MCOONOUGH
NOTARY PU8UC

STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS
OBiMtiBlen EipkM. OMenber 28,201S

My Commission Expires: \7. \ ̂

Ascentria Community Services, Inc ' Amendment #1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5//-?/|4>
Date Name:(lU^^ 4

Title: ^IV^l
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

AscenWa Community Services, Inc Amendment #1
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Exhibit B'B - Amendment *1 Invoice Sheet Crt

CASE COOROINATION OF INITIAL REFUGEE DOMESTIC MEDICAL EXAMINATION - INVOICE DETAIL'

CASE COORDINATOR SERVICES TRANSPORTATION INTERPRETATION TOTAL 1

PA Name
Client

Serviced
Date of Arrival

Person

Code{ACS

Only)

VeftAcathm of

Refutee/
AsylM Satuj

AetMtyOate Activity Type Condition

Unit

Time-1

SaoJXV

hour

Sub-total Case

Coordination

• of nlei X

.S4S cents/

mBe

Sub-total

miles

Unit time**

1&49J0/
hour

Sut>-total

Interpretation

1 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

0 SO.OO 0 $0.00 SO.OO SO.OO

0 $0.00 0 SO.OO $0.00 SO.OO

0 S0.00 0 $0.00 H SO.OO $0.00

0 $0.00 0 SODO SO.00 SO.OO

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

0 SO.OO 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 SO.OO SO.OO

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00

0 SO.OO 0 $0.00 1 SO.OO SO.OO

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 SO.OO $0.00

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00

0 SO.OO 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 SO.OO

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00

•0 $0.00 0 $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00

0 SO.OO 0 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 - SO.OO 0 $0.00 SO.OO 1 SO.OO
1 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 y SO.OO
1 0 $0.00 11 0 SO.OO $0.00 1 $0.00
1 0 $0.00 1 0 $0.00 SO.OO 1 $0.00
fl 0 $0.00 1 0 SO.OO SO.OO i $0.00
1 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 SO.OO
1 0 S0.00 0 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

1 0 $0.00 0 SO.OO $0.00 $0.00

II 0 $0.00 1 0 SO.OO n $0.00 $0.00

>
m
ro

O

a

O
ID
m

i.

CD

>

o>
w

m
o
m
<o

o

Exhibit B-5 Amendment *1
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Exhibit B-6

SPY 19 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Project Name: inteinational Institute of New England, Inc.

Budget Request for Reception and Placement Services

Budget Period: SPY 19 (7/1/18 • 6/30/19)

ZlriCi ..-.il-CC

1. Total Salary/Wages S  50,136.00 $ S 50,136.00 s s s S 50,136.00 s S  50,136.00

2. Employee Benefits s s s s s s s s s

3. Consultants $  5.940.00 $ $  5,940.00 s s s S  5,940.00 $  . I S 5,940.00

4. Equipment $ s s s s s 5 $ IS
Rental s s s s $ s $ $ !S

Repair and Maintenance s $ s $ $ s s $ s

Purchase/Depredation s s s s s s s s , s

5. Supplies $ s $ s s s s $ s

Educational s s s $ s s s s s

Lab s s $ s s s s s s

Pharmacy S $ s $ s s 5 s s

Medical s s s s s s $ $ s

Office s s $ s  . s s $ $ s

6. Travel $  3,924.00 s S  3,924.00 5 s s S  3,924.00 s S  3,924.00

7. Occupancy s $ s s s s s s $

8. Current Expenses s $ s $ s s s s s

Telephone . s s s s '$ ■ - s s $ s

Postage s s s s s $ s $ $

Subscriptions s $ s s s s s $ s

Audit and Legal s $ s s s s s s s

Insurance s 5 $ s $ s s $ s

Board Expenses s s $ s $ s s s s

9. Software $ s s $ s s s s $

10. Marketing s s $ s s $ s $ s

11. Staff Education and Training s s s $ s s $ $ $

12. Subcontractors/Agreements $ s s s $ s s $ s

13. Other (specific detaUs mandatory): Interpre s s s s s s s s s

$ s $ s s s- $ $ s

indlrea s s s s s s $

:.:$l.6p;opp,t)p:

0.00%

International Institute of New England, Inc

Exhibit B-6
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Exhibit B-7

SPY 20 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Project Name: International institute of New England, Inc

Budget Request for Reception and Placement Ser^ces

Budget Period: SPY 20 (7/1/19 - 6/30/20)

1. Total Salary/Wages $  50.136.00 5 S 50,136.00 S $  r s S  50,136.00 s $  50,136.00

2. Employee Benefits $ s S S s $ S $ S

3. Consultants S  5,940.00 $ S  5,940.00 $ 5 5 S  5,940.00 $ S  5,940.00

4. Equipment S 5 $ s $ 5 S s S

Rental S $ s $ 5 S $ s S

Repair and Maintenance S $ 5  - $ S S $ 5 5

Purchase/Depreciation S S S 5 S 5 s $ S

5. Supplies S S 5 $ 5 s $ s

Educational s 5 S 5 $ S s $ $

Lab s $ S S S 5 s s $

Pharmacy 5 $ s S 5 $ s s s

Medical S s $ $ S S s s s

Office S s s s S s $ s s

6. Travel S  3.924.00 s S  3.924.00 s $ s $  3,924.00 s $  3,924.00

7. Occupancy S s $ 5 s $ $ $ S

8. Current Expenses S $ s 5 s s s s S

Telephone S $ s S s  ... - s s s $

Postage S 5 s $ s  " - 5 s s s

Subscriptions s S s $ s $ $ $ s

Audit and Legal 5 s s S $ S s s  . - $

Insurance S $ s s s $ 5 5 s

Board Expenses s s s s s $ S S s

9, Software s $ 5 $ s S 5 5 s

10. Marketing s s $  " - s s S S s s

11. Staff Education and Training $  . s $ s s $ S s s

12. Subcontractors/Agreements s s 5 s s S 5 s s

13. Other (specific details mandatory): Interpre 5 $ S s $ S S s $

s $ S s s $ s s 5

Indirect S ■ S $ $ $ s .5

;''^"6p,O5i0iP.0:! -4:. :•■:■■■- :r-.;
Indirect As a Percent of Direct

International Institute of New England, Inc.
Exhibit B-7
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Exhibit 6-8

SPY 21 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Project Name: IntemBticnal irrstitute of New England, inc.

Budget Request for: Reception and Placement Services

Budget Period: SPY 21 (7/1/20 - 6/30/21)

1 2LM:iX VCCE. yL'ici Vivl, i

L-
•tJUSC

,  .

1. Total Salary/Wages S  50.136.00 s S 50,136.00 s $ s S 50,136.00 $ $  50,136.00

2. Employee Benefits $ s S s $ $ $ $ $

3. Consultants S  5,940.00 $ S  5.940.00 $ s s S  5,940.00 s S  ■ 5,940.00

4. Equipment $ $ $ s s s $ s s

Rental $ s s s s $ s s $

Repair and Maintenance S s s s s s s s $

Purchase/Depredation S 5 $ s $ s s s s

5. Supplies S s s $ s s s s s

Educational $ $ s s  ■ ■ - $ s s s $

Lab S s s s $ $ s $  . - s

Pharmacy s s s s s  . - s s s s

Medical $ s $ s s s s $ s

OfTice 5 $ $ $ $ s $ $ $

6. Travel S  3,924.00 $ S  3,924.00 s $ s S  3,924.00 s $  3,924.00

7. Occupancy S s S s 5 $ s $ s

8. Current Expenses $ s s s s s s s s

Telephone $ $ s s s s s s $

Postage S s s S  " - $ $ s $ $

Subscriptions $  - 5 $ s s $ s $ $

Audit and Legal S $ s s s $ S  - 1 $ s

Insurance $ s s s $ s s s s

Board Expenses S s s s s s s s s

9. Software s $ $ s s $ s s s

10. Marketing $ s s s $ s s s s

11. Staff Education and Training s s s s s s $ $ $

12. Subcontractors/Agreements s s s s s s s s s

13. Other (spcdfic details mandatory): Interpre $ $ $■ $ $ s s s $

$ s s s s s $ s s

indirect s s s $ $ s s

Indirect As a Percent of Olrea

International Institute of New England, Inc.
Exhibit B-8
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where, persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incidenf in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is govemed by'
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

.  5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information i j

Security Requirements ^ /i /t P
Page 1 of 9 Date *



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name,, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the '
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. " "

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Infonnation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.0<}.2018 Exhibit K CQntraclor Initials ^ ̂
DHHS Information i /

Security Requirements c'iJ
PageLfg Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that,,said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2., Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer diisks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted.
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems ,
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH'compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

•  infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will' be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to" protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

JT
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infonnatlon.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will-maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

. obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departrhents discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
.prior express written consent is obtained from the Infomnation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limjted to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HiPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential Information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and In ail cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained. • used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this

■ Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInfonmatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHS)nformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Offlcer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials ^ ̂
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Nicholas A. Toumpas
Cominissiober

Mary Ann Cooney
.Associate.

Comipissioner

. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MINORITY HEALTH & REFUGEE ̂FAIRS

97 PLEASANT STREET CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-3986 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 3986

Fax: 603-271-0824 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 wwyv.dhh8.nh.gov

April 2. 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the-Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

■  Authorize the Department of. Health and Human Services. Office of Minority
Health & Refugee Affairs, to enter into sole source agreements with-the vendors
identified below, for the provision of reception and placement sen/ices that will ensure
ail newly arriving refugees to the State of New Hampshire complete the requirements of
the U's Domestic Medical Examination, in an amount not to exceed $645,012, effective
upon Governor an<d Executive Council approval through June 30, 201.8. 100% Federal
Funding.

. Vendor Vendor

Number

Location Amount

Ascenlria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201-

B001

261 Sheep Davis Road Suite A-1
Concord NH 03301

$322,506

International

Institute of Boston.
Inc.

177551-

B001

One Milk Street

Boston MA 02103
$322,506

Total: $645,012

Funds, to .support this agreement are available in the following account for .State
Fiscal Year 2015 and are anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Years 2016, 2017,
and 2018 upon the availability arid continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hasson
Ana"tRe"HS?ToraBle"Councll

Page Page 2 of 3

010-042-79220000-500731-42200010 HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: MINORITY
HEALTH REFUGEE SERVICES

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2015 102-600731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 $45,954
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 .  $199,686
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42200010 $199,686

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq-Svc 42200010 $199,686
Total: $645,012

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request Is sole source because the Department was required to name the
two (2) vendors who will provide reception and placement services when applying for
federal funding to support New Hampshire's Refugee Resettlement Program, as
approved by the Office of Refugee Settlement.

The vendors must ensure the refugees receiving resettlement and placement
services have the ability to successfully complete all components for US Domestic
Medical Examination within ninety days of first arriving to the United States. If the initial
US Domestic Medical Examination reveals the need for specialty care, dental services,
or mental 'health services, the vendors must assist new arrivals with obtaining any
needed referrals and follow-up care that is necessary.

Pursuant to Section 412 (c) (6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8
USC1522 (c) (6). states are required to provide resettlement and placement services to
all refugees entering the United States. Ascentria, inc. and the International Institute of
Boston, Inc; both provide resettlement and placement services for the federal
government directly. However, those services provided to refugees through their
federal agreements do not include services related to completing the US Domestic
Medical Examination.

The Department named these two vendors in the State of New Hampshire's
2015 State Plan for the Refugee Resettlement to ensure each refugee can experience
continuity of services by having one liaison who can coordinate timely completion of the
US Domestic Medical Examination, which may include multiple appointrnents and
providers. By entering into contract with the two vendors who already provide some
resettlement and placement services, the Department is ensuring continuity of services
to individuals who may otherwise not understand the resettlement process.
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret VVoodJHassan
—^nd'the-Honorab.le-eouncil—^ ^
Page 3 of 3 .

Reception and placement services include the assignment of health care case
cdordinatbrs, also known as'liaisons, who are,responsible for ensuring that refugees
uriderstand ;the importance of-each appointment and how to access .available
transportation" services. They also coordinate appropriate language assiistarice for each
appointment, as well as referrals and follow-up care for- ariy complex medical
conditions, ..acute ,mental health and dental issues identified during the irititial US
Domestic Medical Examination: '

Should dovern'or and Executive Council not support this request, refugees
entering New Hampshire may not receive the required medical examinations, pursuant
to Section .412 which could result in a violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act
(INA), 8 use 1522 (c) (6). New Hampshire citizens could be at risk of exposure to a
higher volume of illness and/or disease due to the lack of appropriate treatment
required during the US Domestic Medical Examination.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funding: 100% Federal

' Respectfully.submitted.

lary Apn Coone^
^te Commissioner

Approved by:
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families in
providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB.A76B-EDE9D102e4EB

Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services

International Institute of Boston, Inc. (Vendor# 177551-8001)

SPY Class/Obiect Class Title Activity
Number

Budget

2015 ■ .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010" $22,977

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 422000'10 $99;843

2017 102.500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843

Total $322,506

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor# 222201-8001)

SPY Class/Object Class Title Activity
Niimbier

Budget

2015 .  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $22,977

.2016 102-500731 ■■ Contracts for.Proqram Services 42200010 ■ $99,843 ,

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 $99,843

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200010 .  $99,843

. Total $322,506
Grand Total $645,012

Fiscal Details

Reception and Placement Services
Page 1 of 1
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Reception and Placement Services

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENtinCATION.
1.1 ■ State Agency Name

NH Depanment of Health & Human Services
Office of Minority Health & Refugee Affairs

'1.2 State Agency Address

97 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

U Contractor Name

International Institute ofBoston, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

One Milk Street

Boston, MA 02109

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(617) 695-9990
r

1.6 Account Number

010-042-79220000-500731-

42200010

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$322,506

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.1 Z Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

p.iiA Hcf) hiQ lAjVi, Chief hDanc.ia( 06^0/"
1.13 Acknowledgement: Stale of .Countyof CZ./izw^r

On5/^3/["before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that .s/hc executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

justice'1.13.1 Signatui^ of N

[Scalj

PubUcxfr the Peace

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

ZhnO.

^  Notary Public
Elina M. Melo

Commonwcaiin ot hiassactiusetts

'My Convnissior. Expiies on March 17.2017

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of AdrnMstratlon, Division ofPenonnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: H/WIS
1.18 Approval by the Governor aqp Executiv^ouncU

By; 1/ On:

page I of4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBrr B which.is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In-addiiion, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with ail the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement:

7. iPERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
cmpioyee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Ofilcer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials:

Date: fHOK.
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8. EVEffT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Comraaor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"): .
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; . '

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default,the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wiitten notice specifying the Event
of IDefault and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and If the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.23 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/COtNFIDENTlALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings; analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Offtcer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject •
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
describe in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTlccrs, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCOiNTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of (he
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTlcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificaiefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Page 3 of 4
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ceniricatc(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with,
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or.assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281'A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
CompenMtion laws in connection with the performance of the .
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in fevor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the'interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22^ SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are.incorporatcd herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
elTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supers^cs all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4 Qi.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EOE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean calendar
days.

1.2. For the purposes of this contract, clients are refugees, as defined by the
Immigration-and Nationality Act, Section 101 (a) (42).

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, the U.S. Domestic Medical Examination is the
required initial medical screening that must be obtained by clients identified in
Section 1.2, above, within 30 - 90 days of arrival to the United States, for
purposes of:

1.3.1. Ensuring medical issues identified in an overseas medical screening are
followed up.

1.3.2. Identifying individuals who have one or more communicable diseases of
potential public health Importance.

1.3.3. Identifying personal health conditions that, if left unidentified, could
adversely impact the ability to resettle.

1.3.4. Referring refugees to primary care providers for ongoing health care, as
appropriate.

1.4. The Reception and Placement period shall be the initial thirty (30) to ninety (90)
days in which the client enters the State of New Hampshire.

1.5. All services shall be provided by the Contractor during the initial ninety (90) days'
of arriving to the State of New Hampshire.

2. Services to be provided

2.1.The Contractor shall provide case coordination for ail components of the U.S.
Domestic Medical Examination for ail clients ariving to the State. The
Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Assign one (1) Case Coordinator who has experience working with
.  refugees or immigrants who also has a bicultural/bilingual background.
The Case Coordinator shall:

2.1.1.1. Have current knowledge of the U.S. Health Care system.

2.1.1.2. Have case management experience with current case
management practices.

2.1.1.3. ' Have a Bachelor's Degree in social services, nursing, public
health, medical or health care administration, or equivalent
experience.

iQ
IntBmational Instituto of Boston, Inc. Exhittt A Contractor Initials '
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

2.1.2. The Contractor shall communicate, facilitate and complete all aspects of
case coordination for clients arriving to Ne>v Hampshire to ensure the
U.S. Domestic Medical Examination components are completed. The
Contractor shall:

2.1:2.1. Review and retain a copy of each client's 1-94 Form or
Asylee Grant Letter.

2.1.2.2. Ensure language assistance is provided, as necessary, for
each meeting and appointment.

2.1.2.3. Explain the necessity of the U.S. Domestic Medical
Examination to ensure each client understands:

2.1.2.3.1. The reason for each examination component.

2.1.2.3.2. Assistance that will be received throughout the
process.

2.1.2.3.3. The U.S. Department of State requirement to
complete each examination component.

2.1.3. • Collect all available overseas medical records for each client and

deliver them, in a timely manner, to the health provider performing the
U.S. Domestic Medical Examination prior to the initial scheduled
appointment(s).

2.1.4. Schedule all client appointments related to the U.S. Domestic Medical
Examination, which include but are not limited to:

2.1.4..1. . Laboratory work.

2.1.4.2. TB testing.

2.1.4.3. Lead and other recommended screenings.

2.1.4.4. Immunizations.

2.1.4.5. Physical examinations.

2.1.5. Facilitate transportation to each medical, mental health and dental
appointment.

2.2. The Contractor shall coordinate all necessary specialist services resulting from
initial examinations. Coordination shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1. ■ Coordinating referrals/follow up appointments for conditions discovered
during the initial medical exam.

2.2.2. Assisting with access to mental health and dental services, including
-  but not limited io language assistance, scheduling appointments and

arranging for transportation to appointments.

2.2.3. Ensuring prescription medications are received by the pharmacy, filled,
picked up and that dosage instructions are understood by the client.

(QInternational institute of Boston. Inc. ' ExMt>i,i A Contractor Initials.

Page 2 of 3 Dale 3/»/zoiT



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit A

2.2.4.' Assisting clients access emergency care, as needed.

2.3.The Contractor shall attend quarterly meetings coordinated by the Department in
order to:

2.3.1. Discuss performance during the previous quarter.

2.3.2. Identify and address challenges and/or barriers to providing services;

2.3.3. Discuss current caseload and anticipated challenges in needed
supports.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1.The Contractor shall provide monthly narrative summary reports to the
Department.

3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit the Department form in Exhibit B-5 on
a monthly basis.

4. Delivery of Services

. 4.1. The Contractor shall provide case coordination services related to the U.S.
Domestic Medical Examination to all clients eligible for assistance with obtaining
a health screening during the Reception and Placement period, under the
Cooperative Agreement between the Government of the United States of
America and the Contractor, and who are eligible for Refugee Medical
Assistance pursuant to 45 C.F.R. Ch. IV (10-01-06 Edition) Part 400 - Refugee
Resettlement Program.

4.2.The Contractor shall attend a minimum of eight (8) meetings described In
Section 2.3.,

4.3. The Co.ntractor shall hire the Case Coordinator in Section 2.1.1 no later than

thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

4.4.The Contractor shall ensure the. U.S. Domestic Medical Examination is
completed for each client within ninety (90) days of the client's entry to the State
of New Hampshire.

Intemationa) Institula of Boston. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials iLQ^
Pago 3 of 3 . Date 3/11/loi^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reception and Placement Services

Exhibit 6

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract Is funded with federal grant funds anticipated to be available based upon
continued appropriation, which are conditioned upon continued support of the program by
the state and federal governments. The contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services In corhpliance with funding requirements. Requirements of CFDA Title

- #93.566, the Refugee Entrant Assistance State Administered Programs - Refugee Medical
Assistarice Grant. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children'
and Families, Office of Refugee Resettlement.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P-
37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor Pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of
Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a fee for service basis only for actual services provided.
Services provided shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown In
Exhibits 8-1 through 8-4.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services. Sections 3. with an invoice for reimbursement of actual services provided
during the month, for a total of twelve (12) invoices per year.

4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
Invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4.3. Invoices and reports identified In Section 3.1 must be submitted to:

Office of Minority Health and Refugee Affairs
97 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified In Exhibit A, Section 3.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract
ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in
nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

IntemaUonai institute of Boston. Inc. Exf^blt B . Contractor Initials
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Exhibit B-1

SPY 2015

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Project Name: Intemationai Institute of Boston, inc.

Budget Request for Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period; 4/8/15 - 6/30/15 State Fiscal Year

I. Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits

3. Coftsultams

4. Equipment

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies

Educational

lab

Pharmacy

Medkal

Offke

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit artd Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontractors/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory); interpri

Itxflrect

TOTAL

7,920.13

538.52

$  22.977;41
mdrect Ai a Perceni o< Direct

International institute of Boston, Inc.

Exhibit B-1

Page 1 of 1

7,920.13

538.52

22.977.41

COMPLETE

14.518.76 14.518.76 14,519

7,920

539

$  22,977

14,519

7,920

539

22,977

Contractor Initials:

Date:^ll/Z£ll3r



Exhibit B-2 SPY 2016

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Rroject Name: International Institue of Boston, Inc.

Budget Request for: Reception & Placement Services

B^get Period: 7/l/lS - 6/30/16 State Fiscal Year

COMPLETE

International Institue of Boston, Inc.
Exhibit B-2

Page 1 of 1

1. Total Salary/Wages S  63.087.50 S S 63,087.50 s $ s $  63,088 $ S  63,088
2. Employee Benefits S s s s s s < s s
3. Consultants S  34,414.87 s S- 34,414.87 s s S  . S  34.415 s $  34,415
4. Equipment s s S s s s s s s

Rental s s s s s s s s s
Repair anti Maintenance s s s s s s  . ■ $ s s
Purchase/Oepredatlon s S  ' s s s s $ s s

S. Supplies s s $ s s s s 5
Educational S S S s s s s s s

'  Lab s s s s s s s s s
Pharmacy S S s s s s $ s 5
Medical s s s s s s s s s
Office S s S s s s s s s

6. Travel S  2,340.00 s S  2.340.00 s s s $  2.340 s S  2,340
7. Occupancy s s s s s s s s s
8. Current Expenses S $ s s s s s s s

Telephone s s s s s s s $ s
Postage s s $ $ s s s $ s
Subscriptions S s s s. $ • s s s s
Audit and Legal $ s s s s s $ s s
Insurance $ s $ s s s \ • s s s
Board Experues S s s s s s s s s

9. Software S $ $ s s s s s s
10. Marketing S s s s s s s s s
11. Staff Education and Training S s s s s $ s s s
12. Subcontractors/Agreements s $ $ $ s s s $ s
13. Other (specific details mandatory): Interprc S s s $ s s s s s

s s s $ s s s s s
Indirect s s $ $ s s 5

TOTAL S  99,842.37 s S 99,842.37 s s s $  99,843 s $  99,843

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit B-3 SFY 2017

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servkes

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Project Name: international Institute of Boston, Irtc.

Budget Request for: Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17 State Fiscal Year

COMPLETE

1. Total SaUiY/Wages 63.08750 $ 63,087.S0 63,086 63,088
2. Employee Benefits

3. Consultarrts 34,414.87 S 34,414.87 34,416 34,415
4. Equipment-

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

orrice

6. Travel 2,340.00 2,340.00 2,340 2,340
■ Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontraaors/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory): Interprt

Indirect

S  99,842.37 S 99,842.37TOTAL 99,843 99,843
iftdirea As a Percent of Direct

international Institue of Boston, Irtc

Exhibit B-3

Page 1 of 1

0.00%

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit B-4 SFY 2018

New Hampshire Department of Health and Huntan Services

ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERtOD

Bidder/Pro}ect Name: InternatioruKnstitute of Boston, Inc.

Budget Request fen Reception & Placement Services

Budget Period: 7/1/17 • 6/10/18 State Fiscal Year

1. Total Salary/Wages

2. Empbyee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depredation

S. Supplies

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

S. Current Expenses

Telephone

Potiaee

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketlrtg

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontractois/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory): fnterpre

Indirect

TOTAL

34,414.87

2340.00

$  99,842.37

S 34.414.87

S  2340.00

$ 99,842.37
indirect As a Percent of Obett

Intematlona! Institute of Boston, Inc.

Exhibit B-4

Page 1 of 1

COMPLETE

63,087.50 S 63,087.50 63,088

34,415

2340

99,843

0.00%

63.088

34,415

2340

99,843

Contractor Initials

Date:

:
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Exhibit 6-5 Invoice Sheet

CASE COORDINATOR SERVICES TRANSPORTATION INTERPRETATION TOTAL

Qient Name
Date of

Arrival

Verification of

Refugee/

Asylee Status

Activity Date Activity Type

Unit

Time** X

$17.50/

hour

Sub<totat Case

Coordination

0 of miles x

.45 cents/

mile

Sub-total

miles

Unit time** x

$49.50/hour

Sub-total

interpretation

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 '  $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 so.oo $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

So.oo ■ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

- so.oo $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 so.oo $0.00

$0.00 so.oo $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

So.oo $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
I

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

and take place within the first 90 days of arrival. Acceptable appointment types include: Facilitation of TB skin test or read, chest x-ray, lab work, physical exam,
immunizations, and initial visit with specialist for a condition discovered / referred during the initial refugee domestic medical examination.

••Rounded to nearest quarter hour. "
Contractor Initials:

Exhibit B-5 .
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility deterrriination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, v^ich file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department svith all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this .
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

(

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Coritract,- nothing
. herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event hew rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of this excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determtne the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such sen/ices at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

0.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment.' attendance'or visit records for each recipient of
sen/ices during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all fotms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such sen/ices.

0.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records.on each patient/recipient of services. .

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days alter the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended.that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the UnKed States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives .shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be conhdential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Page 2 or 5 .Dale ̂ /u/zoir
ExNbit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5918AE2C-QD9E-4AAB-A768-EDE9D102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrws to submit the following reports at the following
times, if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports; Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to ■
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of the terni
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recoyer such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval'from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if rt has
received a single award of $500,000 or more, if the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50. or

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisions Contractor Initials,
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,  more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than•$25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP^ To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must lake reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48_
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
.the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions'as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;
19:1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
(  '

ExWbit C - Special Provisions Conlractor Initials fQ
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or fonms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the ternis and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each sen/ice to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified fn Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulatbns, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the. time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a cornpilatior! of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials
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REVISiONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.. Subparagraph 4 of the General.Provislons of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, Is ■
replaced as follows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligatioris of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part.-
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds a^ected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Seivices, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination; Is amended by adding the
following language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of

the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transitiori Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients

■ receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed

Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are (ransitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

ExNbil C-l - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials. lO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151.-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal ftscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terrriination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner r

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

j  .

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's .
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide, by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2, Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; •

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials.
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
•identification number(s) of each affected grant;

• 1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
.  refiabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

J

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
filer, iWUbovucLj'h 0310^

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Namerlnfcmflhonfll Iwhhlfcop BOiTQO, lOC- (Vb/tJ-
InKmanonal InshhUtcC New ftwripahito

Date Name; Hcl)'Cr\OUAn
finanuaJ mur
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Seivices Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under TKIe IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
.modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
-  influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this.
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-t.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: tnlcmationaJ Imhtut 0? 8Qsnx\\nc- (S/t/fi-
Initmationol New Hampinifc

Da'e Name:p:,fe HcDOnOUflS

Chief Ftnarxtal wctr
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ciWDHHSni07i3 Page 1 of 1 Date ̂ /u/zQir



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9O102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1., By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certif)cation set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in conriection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certlficdtion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certiHcation, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prosp^h/e primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 'suspended,' 'ineligible,' "lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant," 'person,' 'primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction lie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exdusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or- a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violafion of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherv/ise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in. paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective prin^ry participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier.Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; Inltmahonfil Inshhilc 0^ BOitWl. ijX- M)/j-
lhlc«iahCnu\ InihKik of New ttutrpjhift

Date Name:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUiREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH.BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the foliowing
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 ,(42vU.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services o;
benefits,.on the basis of race, color, religion; national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity; c/

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabliities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Oscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 5106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termlnatlon of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process'hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: inkflWhtml llnhtult if-SattrnJoL. A/b/«-
InfciTiahoml IwhhiK tennpjhtft

rvfe:
Namei Ri't^ ficDCnOLldh

^nancial wce/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the sen/ices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agr^s to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. [

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
SecUon 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "heaith care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HiTECH Act" means the Health information techpology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). ■

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services,

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. '
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-1. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

.. p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior.to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity ot^'ects to such disclosure, the Business

V20U Exhfbill Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies. i

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Busin,ess Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant.to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shali immediately perforim a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. ' Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement arid indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall rhake available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate sihall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164:528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHi, Business Asspciate shall make available
to Covered Entity such"information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHi
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
' shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. . Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by ttie Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHi. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise-agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the

-  Agreement, to such PHi and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHi to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibie, for so long as Business '

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Porlabiiity Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 4 of 6 Date.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A76B-EDE9O102E4Ee

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ail PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHi has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.506.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate-the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the-
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscelianeous

a. Definitions and Reouiatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by of created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExhibUI Contfactof InWaia 1(^7
- HcBlth insursncc Poftablliiy Act
Buainess Associate Agreement a/, / .r-

Pago 5 of 6 Date yil/lOIT



OocuSign Envelope ID: 5918AE2C-8D9E-4AAB-A768-EDE9O102E4EB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

The State

Signalure of Auth^ized Ri^rese^ive-

Name of Authorized Representative
^  .a

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Inkmahmiol IrnhhtfeoP eoitualnc- d/b/a-
Name of the Contractor ipTnpjnuc

Signature of Authorized Representative

Hik, HfPfrnniifik
Name of Authorlzecwepresentative

ChipP Hnfl-nuQ\
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERtlFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY-
ACT fFFATA) COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following infomhation for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
•2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: .

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
•The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:InleimahOmI BmfCnJrx. (J/b/iL
InK-Hiah^nAl ImtimK oP Hampihtrt

?,/ii/20ir (^1^
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2} $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

CUrt!HHS/"07t3

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Htials

Date /"/fr




